Morton Grove Park District

6834 Dempster Street ® Morton Grove, lllinois ® 60053 847/965-1200

VL.
VIL.

VIl

Xl.

XIl.

Xin.

XIV.

The Prairie View Community Center is an ADA accessible building. Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this
meeting should contact the Park District’s ADA Compliance Officer, Jeffrey Wait, at the Prairie View Community Center by mail at 6834 Dempster, St.
Mortan Grove, IL 60053, by phone at (847) 965-1200, Monday through Friday 9:00am until 5:00pm or by email to jwait@mgparks.com at least 48 hours
prior to the meeting. Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter generally require at least 5 business days’ notice. For the deaf or hearing impaired please

Board Meeting Agenda

June 15, 2022 at 6:30pm MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Additions/Changes to the Agenda

Citizens Comments/Correspondence on Agenda Items

Consent Agenda:

a. Approval of Minutes: The minutes of the May 18, 2022 Board Meeting

b. Approval of Financial Reports:
1. Cash Summary and the Revenue and Expenditure Report dated May 31, 2022
2. Invoice Distribution Report ending May 31, 2022 in the amount of $384,228.71

Director’s Report
Village Liaison Report

Department Heads’ Reports

New Business

a. Administration and Finance Committee — Commissioner Khan, Chair
1. ACTION ITEM: 2023-2028 Strategic Plan Acceptance
2. ACTIONITEM: Audit Review
3. ACTION ITEM: Statement of Receipts and Disbursements Report
4. ACTION ITEM: Post Issuance Compliance Resolution

Public Comments on Non-agenda Items:

Commissioner Comments: Commissioner Minx, Commissioner Pietron, Commissioner White,

Commissioner Khan, and Commissioner Schmidt

Closed Session:

| move that the Board enter closed session in accordance with the Open Meetings Act section

120/2(c)(1) and (21).

Attorney’s Report

Adjournment

use the lllinois Relay Center Voice only operator at (800) 526-0857.



Consent Agenda: June 15, 2022 — Commissioner Mazhar Khan

Minutes:
| move to accept the recommendation of the Administration and Finance
Committee to approve the minutes of the:

e The Board Meeting held on May 18, 2022

And the Financial Reports which include:

e Cash Summary and Revenue Report dated May 31, 2022
e The Invoice Distribution Report ending May 31, 2022 in the amount of
$384,228.71



Approval of Minutes




Morton Grove Park District

6834 Dempster Street = Morton Grove, lllinois = 60053 847/965-1200

VI,

VIL.

VIIL.

Minutes of the 846" Board Meeting MORTON GROVE
May 18,2022 PARK DISTRICT

Held at Prairie View Community Center

Roll Call: Commissioner White called the meeting to order at 6:32pm.

Commissioners Present: Steve Schmidt, John Pietron, Keith White, and Paul Minx. Absent: Mazhar
Khan

Staff Present: Jeffrey Wait, Executive Director; Marty O’Brien, Superintendent of Finance; Sue
Braubach, Superintendent of Recreation, Keith Gorczyca, Superintendent of Parks and Maintenance,
and Kelly Moore, Fitness Supervisor.

Attorney Present: Steve Adams, Nicole Karas Robbins Schwartz
Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
Additions/Changes to the Agenda: None

Citizens Comments on Agenda Items/Correspondence: None

Consent Agenda:
Commissioner Minx made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Pietron to approve:
a. The minutes of the Board Meeting held on April 20, 2022.
b. The Financial Reports:
1. The Cash Summary and Revenue and Expenditure Report dated April 30, 2022
2. The Invoice Distribution Report for the period ending April 30, 2022 in the amount of
$480,479.32. Ayes: Commissioner Minx, Pietron, Schmidt, and White. Nays: 0. Motion
carried.

Director’s Report: Director Wait began with explaining the hard work staff has been putting in to get
the pools ready especially Harrer Pool. He advised the inspection by the lllinois Department of Public
Health was canceled that afternoon, but the pool is ready to open as soon as the inspection is
complete. Director Wait went on to inform the board that 60 resident families had been selected and
sent invitations to a VIP at Harrer Pool the Friday night before the Grand Reopening. He highlighted
how he and the department heads have been working with the consultant on the update to the
strategic plan. A final draft is due to the board in June. He further stated that he is continuing to
monitor the weather for the rededication of Arnum Park on Saturday. If there was to be inclement
weather, he was going to cancel the event. He would inform the board on Friday afternoon.

Attorney Report: Attorney Steve Adams highlighted the items in which he and his teams have been
working on during the last 60 days including agreements, tax objections, and Harrer Pool.

Village Liaison Report: Commissioner White highlighted the Village was hosting a community outreach
meeting at Melzer School on Thursday night. It starts at 6pm.

COMMITTED TO QUALITY PARK AND RECREATION SERVICES



Department Head Report:

Superintendent Braubach began with resident registration had begun. She continued with stating the
dance recital was the past weekend at Maine East High School, adult softball leagues are running, and
orientation for aquatic positions has begun. Lifeguard training [began? Or “has begun”?] that night. She
explained that pre-school graduations were last week.

Superintendent O’Brien began by explaining the computer equipment has been installed at Harrer Pool.
He highlighted the challenges facing the tax levy from the County. He said he expected to have the
CAFR ready for approval at the June Board meeting. He also informed the Board that the district was
again award the GFOA award for 2020. He said they are always behind by a year.

Superintendent Gorczyca said the Evans Asphalt is back on site to continue work on the courts at Harrer
and Prairie View. He said they are planning to color coat the court at Austin and Shermer the following
week. We are waiting on materials to finish the Harrer courts. His staff is working to get Harrer Pool
ready for the inspection. Despite all the work on Harrer, his department is caught up on all spring work.
He explained the district worked with M-NASR and some of their participants on a mulching project.
Participants help spread mulch throughout Prairie View Park.

New Business:

a. Administration and Finance Committee — Commissioner Minx, Chair

Fitness Presentation — Supervisor Moore used a PowerPoint presentation to provide the
board with information on the basic of the fitness center and its amenities. She explained the
different types of memberships. She also explained the different types of insurance provided
users, such as Silver Sneakers. She highlighted the membership count broken down by
membership types. She continued with Group Exercise information, user numbers, and the
classes offered this summer. She explained the other services offered by the club, such as
personal training, nutritionist, and the community blood drive. She mentioned the Wellness
Fair, candle-light yoga, Walking Warriors, and dogs from Wright-Way.

Supervisor Moore highlighted how she communicates with members. She also discussed the
results of the survey sent to club’s members. There were about 100 respondents with 94%
indicating the club was excellent or good. She was discussed the newsletter, member
appreciation days, and special offers available throughout the year.

She finished with the overview of the equipment and possibly repurposing the racquetball
court for other uses since it doesn’t get much play.

Commissioner White commented on how much the facility had changed since the 1970s when
there were six racquetball courts. He also stated he receives comments on how clean the
facility is from other members.

Board Officers and Committee Assignments — Commissioner Minx made a motion, seconded

by Commissioner White that the Morton Grove Board of Park Commissioners approve officers
and committee assignments . Ayes: Commissioner Pietron, White, Schmidt, and Minx. Nays:

0. Motion carried.

Vacation Policy Change — Commissioner Pietron asked about when vacation days are given.
Director Wait explained days are given at the beginning of the year or on the first day of
employment. Superintendent of Finance O’Brien explained how days are accrued monthly.
Director Wait also explained that not everyone is given the same number of days and
depending on the month the employees starts, only receives days proportional to the
remaining days within the year.

COMMITTED TO QUALITY PARK AND RECREATION SERVICES



Xl.

Xil.

Xill.

Xiv.

Commissioner Minx made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Schmidt that the Morton
Grove Board of Park Commissioners approve the change to the vacation policy. Ayes:
Commissioner Pietron, White, Schmidt, and Minx. Nays: 0. Motion carried.

b. Park and Facility Maintenance Committee — Commissioner Minx

Park Shade Structure Bid - Commissioner Minx made a motion, seconded by Commissioner
Pietron that the Morton Grove Board of Park Commissioners approve the purchase of park shade
structures and alternates. Ayes: Commissioner Pietron, White, Schmidt, and Minx. Nays: 0. Motion
carried.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items: None
Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Schmidt: Thanked staff for all they are doing to get the pools ready. Thanked
Commissioner White for a great two years as President of the Board.

Commissioner Minx: Thanks staff for all they are doing. Thanked Supervisor Moore for a great
presentation.

Commissioner Pietron: Stated he is new with the board but is impressed by what staff does.
Commissioner White: Said great job on the presentation and to staff for pulling off paper on the
furniture. Said he was ready to pass the torch.

Closed Session: At approximately 7:05pm, Commissioner White made a motion, seconded by
Commissioner Pietron for the Board to go into closed session in accordance with the Open
Meeting Act section 120/2(c)(1), and 2(c)(21). Ayes: Commissioner White, Khan, Minx and
Pietron. Nays: 0. Motion carried.

The meeting reconvened at approximately 7:09pm.

Commissioner Minx made a motion, seconded by Commissioner White to approve the minutes of the
closed session meeting held on April 6, 2022 and April 20, 2022. Ayes: Commissioner Schmidt, Minx,
Pietron, and White. Nays: 0. Motion carried.

Steve Adams and Nicole Karas updated the board on contract closeouts and final change orders
requested by WBO and various trade contractors. The board discussed amounts requested by WBO and
each contractor due to delayed issuance of the IDPH permit and other alleged delays. The Board
discussed the impact of the alleged delays, the contractor’s justifications, and relevant contract terms.
The Board directed counsel to continue negotiations with WBO and the contractors per the board’s
parameters.

Adjournment: Commissioner White made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Minx to
adjourn the meeting. Motion carried by voice vote.

Meeting ended at approximately 7:32pm.

Board President, Steve Schmidt Board Secretary, Jeffrey Wait

COMMITTED TO QUALITY PARK AND RECREATION SERVICES



Financials

Cash Summary

Revenue and Expenditures Report
Invoice Distribution Report

Card Services Report



¥Z°SPP ‘086 ‘0T 99" ELY'VTL TE 6EL'PIS 6S°6LT 08T 'TT SANAd TIY - TYIOL
LZ 81892 TO"E€EYT'00T 2872007101 9% °8G6°SZ aNAQd SNIYYATO TTIO¥AYd 66
L6 9€E LTS 9 05°96L'2S2 00°0 LV EET'0LL'D SINAWIAOYANT TYLIAYD oL
LT"%99’8 0070 00°000°ST (€8-5€c£’9) LIAnyY (0}
€9°8L9°LES 6G5°2T9'9¢ Z2°L62'1 00°%00'€LS NOILVHYOHEY TYIDHEAS S
97696021 6% °GE9 ‘S 2L°€9G’88 € Iv9’LE FONYINSNI ALITIEVIT o€
66°€9T°€ES 00°0 veEeve’s 59°02862S ISTIFINI ¥ aNOg ¥4
66°TT16'8¥%T 8L LZ9'TT LLTL9E 00°2ZLT'09T Y0 ICd z2
ST 6¥T'82T 69°266'%1 08°T109 FET0PS'ZVT "ITYTRCI 02
78°666 'V €€ Zv0’e 00°000°22 LT 8€0°'S WNISARN ST
98°€0£'62E’T 09°8EL'IST 99°9LT‘cET 08°G98°L¥C'T NOILYHAIDHY 20
19°268°'%09 1 L9 ¥L8'BET 86°G8E ‘6T 0 TPE'969'T HALVIOJI0D 10
z202/1€/50 S3ITPOID s319ad 2202/T0/S0 uot3idTIosaq pung
Souetreq Te3075 Te30ol5 soueTeg
butpuyg putuutbsg
- SINAODOY INAWISIANI ONY HSYD
saNnd TTY :aNnd NTed ©A015 UWOIION ‘€A
2Z0Z/TE/S0O OL ZZ0Z/T0/S0 WO¥A UBTIqOW I8N
- /1 :sbeg IOTYISIA MJI¥d FAOYS NOINOW ¥OA GNNA Xd XIVWANS HSYD WA 0Z:%0 220Z/60/90



00°00T (PG E€0T‘G9) £2°826°28 G €0T’G9 00°0 SHMNIIANAAXE ¥ SEANTATY A0 IIN
vE" 2T Z8°6€G'18 6% "GE9 'S 81709V ‘€T 00°000’G0T SHMNLIANZAXE TYIOL
GE" %8 82 9€V ‘9T ZLT€96G ‘88 ZL"€95’88 00°000°S0T SENNIATI TYLOL
: THONYMASNI ALITIEYIT - 0€ PUnd
HONVMASNI ALITIEVIT - 0f pPund
00700T 00°62h ‘962 00°0 (00°52Z%‘962) 00°0 STUALIANAIXE ¥ SAANIATY A0 LaAN
LO" 0% 00°GLG‘€8E 00°0 00°62F ‘952 00°000’0%9 STINLIANTART TYLOL
0070 007000079 00°0 00°0 00°000°0%9 SANNIATI TYLOL
1700d YMMYYH - LSTYAINI ANV aNOd - 92 pund
TOOd ¥EMMYH - LSTIAINI dNY ANOd - 92 pung
00°00T (6€£° 7SV '08F) pETERE’E 6€°¥SY '08% 0070 STINLIANTAXT 3 SHANIATE A0 LIAN
00°0 00°000‘S00'T 00°0 00°0 00°000°G00'T STYNLIANAIXA TYIOL
I8 LY 19°6%G‘¥ZS veteve’e 6€°7SY ‘08F 00°000°G600°T SENNIATY TYIOL
:ISEYEINI 3 dNOd - GZ pung
ISTMEINI 3 ANOd - GZ pund
00°00T 69°6€£9°0T (107092'11) (69°6£970T) 0070 STYNLIANIAXE 3 SHONIAT JI0 LIAN
LZ"S¢€ EETO0TS9TT 8L°LZY9'TT L9°68% ‘€9 00°000‘08T SMINLIANAdXE TYIOL
9€°62 Z0°0GT’LZT LLTL9E 86°6%8'2ZS 007000081 SANNIATE TYIOL
1°YT0TITd - ZZ pung
"Y'0TITd - gg pund
00°00T (0T-102°'1) (68°06€°VT) 0T"102°T 00°0 STINIIGNIIXT 3 SAONIATT J0 LEAN
Zv 0¥ 0€°6TL'S2T 69°266°FT 0L°08Z’S8 00°000°TTC SHANLIANTIXA TYLIOL
660V 0T 8TS‘FZT 08°109 08°18% ‘98 00°000‘112 SHANIAATE TYIOL
TITMCWTI - 0Z pund
"A*9TH'I - 02 pund
00°00T (0L 6€EF'PT) L9°LS6°6T 0L 6EV'FT 00°0 STINLIANIAXE 3 SAANAATI J0 IAN
LE FE 0L 6ER BT €€°2v0°2C 0€°096°L 00700022 STINLIANAdXE TYIOL
00°00T 00°0 00700022 00700022 00700022 SHNNIATY TYIOL
THOASAW - 6T pund
WAASAW - ST pund
00°0 0070 00°0 00°0 0070 SMINLIANAIXE 3 SHANIATE IO IAN
0070 007000°L 00°0 0070 00°000°L SMINLIANAIXA TYIOL
00°0 00°000°L 0070 00°0 007000°L SANNAATE TYIOL
$EDITOd - S0 pung
HOITOd - GO pung
00°00T (98°9€€’GT¥H) 90°8€L'Z8 98°9€€ ‘GTV 0070 STINLIANIIXT 3 SAANIATE A0 LIN
L9°0¢€ TP 0ST‘S6L"T 0T°22S’€ST 65°2LZ'V6L 00°€Zv ‘685’2 STINLIANAAXT TYIOL
TL 9% GG ETI8'6LE’T 91°09Z’9€2 GH°609°602'T 00" €2V ‘68G'2C SANNIATE TYIOL
INOIIVIIOEME - g0 Pund
NOILVEIOM - g0 pund
00°00T (89°%28'€26) (69°88% ‘68) 89°%28’€26 00°0 SHYNLIANIAXE 3 SHANIATY JI0 LAN
v9°12 8£°960'L02'Z 9Z°06G‘6TT 29°0€€'609 00°L8€'9T8°C STINLIANIAXE TYIOL
AR 0L°1€2'€82'1 LG°TOT‘0€E 0€°GGT‘€EG’T 00°L8BE'9T8’T SANNIATI TYIOL
TAIVE0d¥00 - 10 pund
ALYEI0d90D - T0 pund
aasn (TYIRIONEY) TYIRHON (ASYAIOHAA) HASYHAONT (TYMONEY) TYINON 19009 AIANTRY NOILAdT¥0SHA YAINON TD
_Load % FONYIVE 2202/1€/S0 HINOW 2z0Z/1€/50 zz02
ATAYIIVAY ¥od ALIAILOY HONYIVE dLX

2Z0Z/T€/G0 ONIANY QOTdAd Bd SA04D UOJIIOW :dd
usTagou tI9S)

= Z/T :ebeg IOTMLSIA MUYd JAOYD NOLYOW ¥0d I¥0dHd TUNLIANIAXE ONY JONIATS

Wd 6T:¥0 2202/60/90



00°00T (6L €EVT‘186) (9T %62 '66T) 6L EVY 186 0070 SMINLIANAIXA 3 SANNIATE A0 LAN
T6°LT §8°BOO’ETL’ZT 7L°628'96S GT"10£°869°C 00" 0TE‘TIV ST SANNd TTY - STINLIANAdXHA TYIOL
887 €T 90°G9G TELTT 86 GES’L6E 76 ¥PL‘6L9°¢E 00°0TE‘TTF ‘ST SANNA TTY ~ SHANNIATY TYIOL
00°00T G6°T19G°29L (06°96L°252) (56°195'29L) 00°0 STINLIANTIXE 3 SHANIATY A0 LIN
96701 G0 vCL V0SS ‘9 06°96L'25C S6°GLLLOL 00-006‘zZLT L SMINLIANAGXE TYLOL
L0 0 00°982192'L 00°0 00°v12'S 00°00S§‘zZLZ’L SHNNIATI TYIOL
I SINIWIAOYAWI TYLIAYD - 0L PuUng
SININAAOYAWI TYLIJYD - 0L Pung
00°00T (00°000°T) 00°000°ST 00°000‘T 00°0 SMINLIANAIXT 3 SHANIATI A0 LAN
€E €6 00°000°T 0070 00°000°%T 00°000“ST SMINLIANIIXT TYIOL
00°00T 0070 00°000“ST 00°000°GT 00°000°ST SANNIATE TYLOL
1LIANY - OF pund
IIANY - OF pund
00°00T (9T-OTL‘60T) (LE"GZE'GE) 9T 0TL ‘60T 00°0 STINIIANIIXE 3 SHANTATY A0 IAN
00°¥%T 98°€6Z'TLY 667229 ‘9¢ FT1°90L9L 007000879 SMINLIANTAXE TYIOL
Z0°¥¢E 0L°€8G°19¢€ 2T L6T'T 0£°9T% ‘98T 00°000‘8%S SHNANIAT TYIOL
INOIIYTIDTM TYIDAAS — GE pung
NOIIVTIORY TYIDIdS - S€ pund
adsn (TYWEONIY) TYIRION (ISYMIDAQ) ASYTIONI  (TVIRIONEY) TYWEON 135dnd aIANINY NOILJI¥DSHEA EGHON 19
19049 % TONYIVE Z2202/1€/S0 HINOW Z2z02/1€/S0 zz0¢
- ATIVIIVAY ¥0od ALIAILOY FONYIVE QLA
ZzZ0Z/TE/S0 SNIANA qOTdHd Bd SA0ID UOIIOW :€d
UsSTIgOou :I3S[)
- z/z :obeg IOTALSIA Ma¥d FAOED NOIMOW ¥0d I¥Oddd HAINLIANIIXA ANY HONIATL

Wd 6T:%0 2202/60/90



Q§/09/2Q22 04:21 PM
User: mobrien

INVOICE GI DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT
INVOICE ENTRY DATES 05/01/2022 - 05/31/2022

Page:

1/7

DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED
PAID

GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description Amount Check #

Check 314898

01-20~520312 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES-JAN CASE LOTS, INC JANITORIAL SUPPLIES FOR GA 1,069.35 314898
Total For Check 314898 1,069.35

Check 314899

01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE CMFP DEPT MG-06A ALARM MONITORING BAPRIL TO 210.00 314899

02-22-553100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-POOL CMFP DEPT MG-06A ALARM MONITORING FOR APRIL 210.00 314899

02-33-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE CMFP DEPT MG-06A ALARM MONITORING FOR PVCC 210.00 314899

15-10-554600 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-PROF CMFP DEPT MG-06A ALARM MONITORING APRIL TO 420.00 314899
Total For Check 314899 1,050.00

Check 314900

02-32-520211 MATRL AND SUPP-PREVENTATIV DIRECT FITNESS SOLUTIONS, PREVENTITIVE MAINTENANCE O 1,524.00 314900
Total For Check 314900 1,524.00

Check 314901

70-10-586135 EXP MIS - BASKETBALL & TEN EVANS AND SON BLACKTOP, IN COURT REPAIR PROJECT AUSTI 155,580.81 314901
Total For Check 314801 155,580.81

Check 314902

02-10-210500 PAYABLES-DEPOSITS PAYABLE FERDINAND FERNANDEZ REFUND OF SECURITY DEPOSIT 200.00 314902
Total For Check 314902 200.00

Check 314903

01-20-520323 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA GRAINGER FIRE HOSE NOZZLES FOR POOL 66.18 314903
Total For Check 314903 66.18

Check 314904

01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE GREEN TURF INC. APRIL 2022 LAWN CARE 1,601.25 314904
Total For Check 314904 1,601.25

Check 314805

02-21-553100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-POOL HALOGEN SUPPLY COMPANY, IN CHEMICALS FOR ORIOLE AND H 3,142.28 314905

02-22-553100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-POQOL HALOGEN SUPPLY COMPANY, IN CHEMICALS FOR ORIOLE AND H 11,247.07 314905
Total For Check 314905 14,389.35

Check 314906

02-08-490943 PROGRAM FEES REV-FAMILY EV JULENE VALLE REFUND MUSIC ARQOUND THE WO 30.00 314906
Total For Check 314306 30.00

Check 314907

01-20-520321 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT,., - MA MENARDS REPLACE OUTLET AT OKETO FI 124.26 314907

01-20-520323 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS CONCRETE FOR THORGUZARD AT 77.80 314907
Total For Check 314807 202.06

Check 314908

01-20-520321 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MORTON GROVE SUPPLY COMPAN AUSTIN FEILDHOUSE SINK REP 78.30 314908
Total For Check 314908 78.30

Check 3145909

30-10-532610 INSURANCE-PROPERTY & GENER PARK DISTRICT RISK MANAGEM PROPERTY DAMAGE COVERAGE F 2,982.22 314309

30-10-532615 INSURANCE-EMPLOYMENT PRACT PARK DISTRICT RISK MANAGEM PROPERTY DAMAGE COVERAGE F 332,86 314909

30-10-532630 INSURANCE-WORKERS COMP PARK DISTRICT RISK MANAGEM PROPERTY DAMAGE COVERAGE F 2,209.92 314909
Total For Check 314909 5,525.00

Check 314910

01-10-551120 CONTRACT SVCS-LEGAL - EXTR ROBBINS SCHWARTZ MARCH LEGAL SERVICES 7,644.00 314910
Total For Check 314910 7,644.00

Check 314911

70-10-586135 EXP MIS - BASKETBALL & TEN THE W-T GROUP, LLC MANSFIELD, AUSTIN, SHERMER 1,316.25 314911
Total For Check 314911 1,316.25

Check 314912

01-20-520325 MATRL-SUPP-MAINT. - MAT'LS V AND J LANDSCAPING AND SE CHAIN FOR CHAINSAW 53.99 3145912
Total For Check 314912 53.99

Check 314913

REFUND HOT SHOTS BASKETBAL 138.00 314913

02-01-490193

PROGRAM REVENUE HOT SHOTS

YASER MOHAMMED



06/09/2022 04:21 PM

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT

Page:

2/1

User: mobrien INVOICE ENTRY DATES 05/01/2022 - 05/31/2022
DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED
PAID

GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description Amount Check #

Check 314913
Total For Check 314913 138.00

Check 314916

01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE ALARM DETECTION SYSTEMS, I JUNE TO AUGUST 2022 ALARM 57.30 314916

02-22-553100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-POOL ALARM DETECTION SYSTEMS, I JUNE TO AUGUST 2022 ALARM 179.67 314916

15-10-554600 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-PROF ALARM DETECTION SYSTEMS, I JUNE TO AUGUST 2022 ALARM 107.85 314916
Total For Check 314916 344,82

Check 314917

70-10-586000 EXP MIS-BOND REGISTRAR & L AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHICAG BOND FEES FOR SERIES 2013 475.00 314917
Total For Check 314917 475.00

Check 314918

02-01-593131 PRGM SUPP-SOFTBALL - ADULT BEACON ATHLETICS BALLFIELD SUPPLIES 892.00 314918
Total For Check 314918 892.00

Check 314819

02-32-513700 SALARIES & WAGES-GROUPX IN BODYMINDSPIRITFITNESS CORP ZUMBA FITNESS CLASSES 495,00 314918
Total For Check 314919 495,00

Check 314920

01-10-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, CANON PRINTER USAGE APRIL 56.50 314920

02-10-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, CANON PRINTER USAGE APRIL 56.50 314920
Total For Check 314320 113.00

Check 314921

02-07-592840 CONTRACTING SERVICES-MAGIC CHILDREN'S THEATRE COMPANY WILLY WONKA CLASS 2022 2,275,00 314921
Total For Check 314921 2,275.00

Check 314922

02-32-554200 CONTRACT SVCS-AGREEMENTS - COMCAST CABLE APRIL CABLE SERVICES 52,55 314922
Total For Check 314922 52.55

Check 314923

01-10-540110 UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED 8830 OAK APRK AVENUE SERVI 44.29 314923
Total For Check 314923 44,29

Check 314924

01-10-580100 EXP MISC.-HUMAN RESOQURCE E FAST SIGNS ID BADGES 16.00 314924
Total For Check 314924 16.00

Check 314925

02-01-490176 PROGRAM FEES REV-ISKC KARA HANNAH VIERA REFUND FRO KARATE AND HOT 123.00 314925

02-01-490193 PROGRAM REVENUE HOT SHOTS HANNAH VIERA REFUND FRO KARATE AND HOT 104.00 314925
Total For Check 3148925 227.00

Check 314926

02-05-592624 CONTRACTING SERVICES-YOUTH ICOOK, INC COOKING CLASSES 2022 1,156.00 314926
Total For Check 314926 1,156.00

Check 314927

02-07-592840 CONTRACTING SERVICES-MAGIC MAGIC OF GARY KANTOR ABRACADABRA CLASSES 5/3/22 280.00 314927
Total For Check 314927 280.00

Check 314928

01-10-581400 EXP MISCELLANEQUS-DUES & S NATIONAL RECREATION & PARK MEMBERSHIP IN NPRA 2022 1,150.00 314928
Total For Check 314928 1,150.00

Check 314928

02-03-592412 CONTRACTING SERVICES- CAMP RECORD A HIT, INC. DEPOSIT DUE ON 221445 & 22 350.00 314929
Total For Check 314929 350.00

Check 314930

30-10-582650 EXP MISC.-SAFTY TRAIN & SU ROBERT HOLBROOK 2022 SAFETY SHOES 110.49 314930
Total For Check 314930 110.49

Check 314931

02-01-593131 PRGM SUPP-SOFTBALL - ADULT SANTO SPORT STORE 12, 14 & 16 INCH SOFTBALLS 1,555.75 314931



Q6/09/2922 04:21 PM INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT Page: 3/1

User: mobrien INVOICE ENTRY DATES 05/01/2022 - 05/31/2022
DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED
PAID
GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description Bmount Check #

Check 314931

Check 314932
02-07-593825

Check 314933
70-10-586149

Check 314934
01-10-540130

02-10-540130
02-21-540130
02-22-540130
02-33-540130
15-10-540130

Check 314935
02-33-520321

02-33-552300

Check 314936
02-21-560700

Check 314837
02-32-554200

Check 314938
70-10-586170

Check 314939
01-20-554100

02-22-570600
02-33-552300
02-33-570200
15-10-554600

Check 314940
01-10-520110

01-10-520130
01-10-520140
01-10-552200
01-10-580100
01-10-580201
01-10-581250
01-10-581400
01-10-589105
01-20-560200
02-03-591412
02-04-593514
02-06-593711
02-06-593715
02-07-593813
02-07-593825
02-07-593826
02-08-592945
02-08-593938

Total For Check 314931 1,555.75
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-BASE SYSCO FOOD SERVICES BASE SUPPLIES 1,413,33 314932
Total For Check 314932 1,413.33
OKETO PARK RENNOVATION UPLAND DESIGN DESIGN WORK ON OKETO PARK 5,450,311 314933
Total For Check 314933 5,450.31
UTILITIES-WATER VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE VARIOUS WATER BILLS FOR TH 78.94 314834
UTILITIES-WATER VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE VARIOUS WATER BILLS FOR TH 95.68 314934
UTILITIES-WATER VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE VARIOUS WATER BILLS FOR TH 143.50 314934
UTILITIES-WATER VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE VARIOUS WATER BILLS FOR TH 11.98 314934
UTILITIES-WATER VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE VARIOUS WATER BILLS FOR TH 315.74 314934
UTILITIES-WATER VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE VARIOUS WATER BILLS FOR TH 35.88 314934
Total For Check 314934 681.72
MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA AUTOMATIC DOOR AUTHORITY REPAIR FRONT SLIDING DOOR 189.38 314935
CONTRACT SVCS-CONTRACTUAL AUTOMATIC DOOR AUTHORITY REPAIR FRONT SLIDING DOOR 372.00 314935
Total For Check 314935 561,38
EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - POOL CASE LOTS, INC NEW FLOOR MATS FOR HARRER 479,70 314936
Total For Check 314936 479,70
CONTRACT SVCS-AGREEMENTS - COMCAST CABLE JUNE FITNESS TVS 593.56 314937
Total For Check 314937 593.56
EXP MISCELLANEOUS-HARRER P COURTESY PLUMBING & SERVIC INSTALL EMERGENCY SHOWER A 735.17 314938
Total For Check 314938 735.17
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE CRNE'S ENVIRONMENTAL CONTR GARAGE AC UNIT REPAIR 667.50 314939
BLDG-LANDSCAPE-POOL - BLDG CRNE'S ENVIRONMENTAL CONTR AC TUNE UP AT ORIOLE POOL 350.00 314939
CONTRACT SVCS-CONTRACTUAL CRNE'S ENVIRONMENTAL CONTR REPAIR ROOF TOP UNIT THAT 879.00 314939
BUILDING & LANDSCAPE-BUILD CRNE'S ENVIRONMENTAL CONTR REPAIR ROCF TOP UNIT THAT 1,857.00 314939
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-PROF CRNE'S ENVIRONMENTAL CONTR MUSEUM ANNEX AC TUNE UP 210.00 314939
Total For Check 314939 3,963.50
MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 30.70 314940
MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 116.00 314940
MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 40.04 314940
CONTRACT SVCS-FRAMEWORK IT FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 4,227.98 314940
EXP MISC.-HUMAN RESOURCE E FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 73.90 314940
EXP MISC.-RENEWAL OF STRAT FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 7,700.00 314840
EXP MISCELLANEOUS-BUSINESS FIFTH THIRD BANK MBRY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 72.90 314940
EXP MISCELLANEOQOUS-DUES & S FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 59.99 314940
EXP MISCELLANEQOUS-EMPLOYEE FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 1,502.55 314940
EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - MAIN FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 765.94 314940
OFFICIATING SERVICES- CAMP FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 225.00 314940
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-DANCE - C FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 281.75 314940
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-PRE SCHOO FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 145.20 314940
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-TODDLER V FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 30.60 314940
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-BIRTHDAY FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 263.27 314940
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-BASE FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 105.13 314940
PROGREM SUPPLIES~KINDER OD FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 23.90 314940
CONTRACTING SERVICES-BACK FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 464,50 314940
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-EGGSTRAVA FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 12.99 314940



06/09/2Q22 04:21 PM
mobrien

User:

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT
INVOICE ENTRY DATES 05/01/2022 - 05/31/2022

Page:

4/7

DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED
PAID

GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description Amount Check #

Check 314940

02-08-593946 PROGRAM SUPPLIES-SANTA STO FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 302.48 314940

02-08-593947 PROGRAM SUPPLIES-STEMULATI FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 39.26 314940

02-10-520110 MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 52.93 314940

02-10-581400 EXP MISCELLANEOUS-DUES & S FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 85.00 314940

02-21-520110 MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 302,12 314940

02-21-560700 EQUIPMENT~NEW EQUIP - POOL FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 868.64 314940

02-22-560700 EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - POOL FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 700.55 314940

02-22-570600 BLDG-LANDSCAPE-POOL - BLDG FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 113.25 314940

02-32-520360 MATRL AND SUPP-SUPPLIES: F FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 56.27 314940

02-32-520370 MATRL AND SUPP-SUPPLIES - FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 128.69 314940

02-32-552300 CONTRACT SVCS-CONTRACTUAL FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 249.00 314940

02-33-520312 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES-JAN FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 43.46 314940

02-33-520321 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 58.49 314940

02-33-520327 MATRL- SUPP-MAINT. - BALL FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 177.22 314940

02-33-560200 EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - MAIN FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 398.54 314940

02-35-521584 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES-BAN FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 1,737.18 314940

02-35-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 493.95 314940

02-35-554405 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-PUBLI FIFTH THIRD BANK MAY 2022 CREDIT CARD PAYME 304.70 314940
Total For Check 314940 22,254.07

Check 314941

01-10-520110 MATRIL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS OFFICE SUPPLIES 48.89 314941

02-10-520110 MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS OFFICE SUPPLIES 161.39 314941
Total For Check 314941 210.28

Check 314942

01-20-520321 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA GRAINGER FUSES 44.70 314942

70-10-586170 EXP MISCELLANEOUS-HARRER P GRAINGER EMERGENCY SHOWER HEAD AT H 449,46 314942
Total For Check 314942 494.16

Check 314943

01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE GREEN TURF INC. MAY 2022 LAWN SERVICE 1,601.25 314943
Total For Check 314943 1,601.25

Check 314944

01-10-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE LEAF JUNE COPIER RENTAL 192.76 314944

02-10-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE LEAF JUNE COPIER RENTAL 192.76 314944
Total For Check 314944 385.52

Check 314945

35-10-552700 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-SRA C MAINE-NILES ASSN OF SP REC GENERAL CONTRIBUTION Q2 20 35,925.00 314945

35-10-552705 CNTRCT SVCS-ADA INCLUSION MAINE-NILES ASSN OF SP REC INCLUSION SERVICES APRIL C 697.59 314945
Total For Check 314945 36,622.59

Check 314946

01-20-520323 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS RETAINING WALL REPAIRS 141.28 314946

02-21-520312 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES-JAN MENARDS CUSTODIAL EQUIPMENT FOR HA 537.34 314946
Total For Check 314946 678.62

Check 314947

02-22-570600 BLDG-LANDSCAPE-POOL - BLDG MORTON GROVE SUPPLY COMPAN ORIOLE POOL FLUSH VALVE 680.91 314947
Total For Check 314947 680.91

Check 314948

02-01-592131 CONTRACTING-SOFTBALL - ADU QUICK SCORES LLC SCORE KEEPING FOR SOFTBALL 133.00 314948
Total For Check 314948 133.00

Check 314949

01-20-560200 EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - MAIN RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT BACKPACK SPRAYER 179.98 314949
Total For Check 314949 179.98

Check 314950

02-21-560700 EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - POOL SMART SIGN 87.80 314950



06/09/2022 04:21 PM INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT Page: 5/7

User: mobrien INVOICE ENTRY DATES 05/01/2022 - 05/31/2022
DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED
PAID

GL Number

Invoice Line Desc

Vendor

Invoice Description

Amount Check #

Check 314950

Total For Check 314950 87.80
Check 314951
02-33-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE COLLEY ELEVATOR CO. ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE MAY 2 212.00 314951
Total For Check 314951 212.00
Check 314952
02-10-581200 EXP MISC.-EDUCATIONAL SEMI DANIEL BREGMAN REIMBURSEMENT FOR CPRE EXA 345.00 314952
Total For Check 314952 345,00
Check 314953
70-10-586170 EXP MISCELLANEOUS-HARRER P DBM SERVICES INC INVOICE 650 18 FOR HARRER 15,064.00 314953
Total For Check 314953 15,064.00
Check 314954
01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE GROOT, INC. TRASH REMOVAL MAY 2022 443.17 314954
Total For Check 314954 443,17
Check 314955
70-10-586170 EXP MISCELLANEOUS-HARRER P JENSEN'S PLUMBING & HEATIN 650 18 B&C FOR HARRER POOL 9,402.00 314955
Total For Check 314955 9,402.00
Check 314956
70-10-586170 EXP MISCELLANEOUS-HARRER P JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SECOND INSTALLMENT OF CAME 13,499.00 314956
Total For Check 314956 13,499.00
Check 314957
15-10-554600 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-PROF LOW VOLTAGE WORKS, INC. MAY TO AUGUST 2022 WIRELES 105.00 314957
Total For Check 314957 105.00
Check 314958
01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE LRS HOLDINGS, LLC TRASH REMOVAL AT NATIONAL 72.53 314958
Total For Check 314958 72.53
Check 314959
02-32-460110 MEMBERSHIPS-RB - FITNESS M MARCIA ADELBERG REFUND FOR MARCH 2020 35.00 314959
Total For Check 314959 35.00
Check 314960
02-33-520312 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES-JAN MENARDS PVCC JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 83.56 314960
02-33-520321 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS PVCC JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 29,42 314960
02-33-520327 MATRL- SUPP-MAINT. - BALL MENARDS JANITORIAL SUPPLIES FOR PV 24.99 314960
02-33-560200 EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - MAIN MENARDS JANITORIAL SUPPLIES FOR PV 32.58 314960
02-33-570200 BUILDING & LANDSCAPE-BUILD MENARDS PVCC JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 70.84 314960
Total For Check 314960 241.39
Check 314981
01-10-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, MAY 2022 COPIER SERVICES 207.59 314981
02-10-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, MAY 2022 COPIER SERVICES 207.59 314981
Total For Check 314981 415.18
Check 314982
01-10-540110 UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED MAY 2022 ELECTRIC BILL 1,253.14 314982
02-10-540110 UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED MAY 2022 ELECTRIC BILL 477.37 3149582
02-21-540110 UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED MAY 2022 ELECTRIC BILL 1,044.18 314982
02-22-540110 UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED MAY 2022 ELECTRIC BILL 277.90 314982
02-33-540110 UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED MAY 2022 ELECTRIC BILL 5,012.58 314982
15-10-540110 UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED MAY 2022 ELECTRIC BILL 145.49 314982
Total For Check 314982 8,210.66
Check 314983
70-10-586148 EXP MISCELLANEOUS-ARNUM PA GEORGE'S LANDSCAPING INC. PAINTED ACTIVITY STATIONS 1,090.00 314983
Total For Check 314983 1,090.00
Check 314984
01-10-520140 MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP HINCKLEY SPRINGS BOTTLED WATER FOR PVCC 76.82 314984
76.82

Total For Check 314984



06/09/2022 04:21 PM INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT

User: mobrien INVOICE ENTRY DATES 05/01/2022 - 05/31/2022
DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED

PAID
GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description

Page:

6/7

Amount Check #

Check 314985

70-10-586170 EXP MISCELLANEOUS-HARRER P JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY HARRER POOL DATA LINES
Total For Check 314985

Check 314986

01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE LOW VOLTAGE WORKS, INC. ALARM SERVICE FOR GARAGE 6
Total For Check 314986

Check 314987

01-20-570400 BLDG-LANDSCAPE-TREES-SHRUB LURVEY LANDSCAPE SUPPLY VIBUMUM RED WING
Total For Check 314987

Check 314988

70-10-586170 EXP MISCELLANEOUS-HARRER P MISFITS CONSTRUCTION COMPA DECK CHAIRS FOR HARRER POO
Total For Check 314988

Check 314989

01-10-540150 UTILITIES-TELEPHONE PEERLESS NETWORK PHONE AND INTERNET SERVICE
02-10-540150 UTILITIES-TELEPHONE PEERLESS NETWORK PHONE AND INTERNET SERVICE
02-33-540150 UTILITIES-TELEPHONE PEERLESS NETWORK PHONE AND INTERNET SERVICE

Total For Check 314989
Check 314990

01-10-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS APRIL - MAY 2022 GAS BILL
02-10-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS APRIL - MAY 2022 GAS BILL
02-22-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS APRIL - MAY 2022 GAS BILL
02-33-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS APRIL - MAY 2022 GAS BILL
15-10-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS APRIL - MAY 2022 GAS BILL

Total For Check 314990

574

574

105

105.

89.

89.

49,160.

49,160

1,380.
1,380.
1,421.

4,181.

153.
827.
.25

1,918

612,
182,

3,694,

.50

.50

.00

00

00

00

00

.00

04
04
85

93

10
63

40
86

24

314985

314986

314987

314988

314989
314989
314989

314890
314990
314990
314990
314990



06/09/2Q22 04:21 PM INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT

User: mobrien INVOICE ENTRY DATES 05/01/2022 - 05/31/2022
DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED

PAID
GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description

Page: 7/7

Amount Check #

Fund Totals:
Fund 01
Fund 02
Fund 15
Fund 30
Fund 35
Fund 70

CORPORATE
RECREATION

MUSEUM

LIABILITY INSURANC
SPECIAL RECREATION
CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN

33,574.91
54,392.14
1,207.08
5,635.49
36,622.59
252,796.50

384,228.71



S0¥¥S5-S€-20 6¥'L9% EDR{EZID] J[[PYI pIe) ssaulsng ndelsip z720Z/11/% uuewWLRH
S0¥¥S5-SE-20 11981$ IS PUe 11ey SSau[iap ‘d8ud|ey) sHodS Ajiuey -spy SpY }00qade] 720z/01/% UUBWLIBH
SZ16 Iaquiny ple)
6 018%
00%185-01-10 00'S+$ san(] dys1oquajy JUSWFRUEI JIN], SHOS SIOUI]{] VILLSTI dS4 z20z/62/v esAzd10D
00Z095-0Z-10 ¥6'S9L$ SuIuIwLL], 931], 10] 90IN0S JOMOJ JUSWIYDENY 014 ouj wrsy ydiey 7202/8/% e2A22105)
8181 Iaquiny prey)
018LL$
0%1025-01-10 Y0°0%$ DDA 10] 1936\ PR[IOY ¥g/aa 2202/9/% a9)|
S01685-01-10 90'8L$ 93)] BINET 10 YIUN] JUSWAINSY S,0UeLIe|y z202/9/% a3y
¥EST JaquinN plIe)
Z968E'Z$
00£095-12-20 66'SZ1$ Jo.LIRY 10] 3IED Ifey) SuIp[od uozeury zeoz/e/s yoeqneig
0T102S-12-20 OD..vh% neis _Oon— 10J m.—mEoW mcm—zﬁmﬂuw J0J :oﬁ&tuwnsm h—ﬁ:oz Eou.mﬁ—:m I°n NNON\M\m yoegnelg
0110Z5-1Z-20 STSYIS (spaeAueT pue sapsiym) sarjddns prenn 31035 pIENSaJIT YL zeoz/z/s ydeqneig
001¥55-01-20 86'91$ Buuear) 3ng Auung ssa.Jdxg sI12Ue3|) zz0z/z/s yoeqneig
00.09S9-12-20 O@.h@% UdN 1oa1ey ho.« sue) mw.mn.—mu uozeury NNON\N\m yoegneag
011025-01-20 L6'ETS DJAd 10§ SYSE| 90e UOZEWIY z20z/1/s yoeqnesg
00Z09S-££-20 66'66T% DDAd 10] Irey?) 1ed 3uIp[oj yor(g uozewy z202/62/% yoeqne.g
0T1025-12-20 18'78% JaLIey Joj sarjddng a0 uozZeuly 7202/92/% yoeqneig
00£095-22-20 00°022% a[oLIQ J0j s39¥0e| urey paendajr] uozewy 7202/92/% Yoeqnelig
00L09S-12-20 T0%91$ JIa1Iel 10] JOUIQR) PV IS4 uozewy 2202/92/% yoeqnesg
00409G8-12-20 O0.0NN% JalleHy .:uu mumxum— urey —uhmzmmﬁ_q uozewy NNON\NN\.v yaeqnelg
00£409S-12-20 10°6¥$ sugis 10y sagreyp Juiddiys 210)g pIENSYIT BYL, ze0z/0e/y yaeqnetg
00L095-12-20 0L%S$ S[00{ 10j SUED YSEL], pUe saLIaNeyq uozewy 2202/21/% Yoeqneusg
S¥6265-80-20 0S¥97$ yseg [00UDS 0] yorg 10J JuswulepIajuy 10§ ysodaq s[} Y SesSnoH adunog z220Z/s/¥% yoeqnesg
00£09S-22-20 S508¥$ $]1004 10j $}20g JUSUWAINSEIY 1YJOH 210§ pIendayITayL zz0Z/¥%/% yoeqnesg
9781 Iaqunp ple)
T1Z11E9%
00Z0LS-££-20 8¥¥6$ wLIR[y 211 10j Wed maN Avad z2202/v/s uaug,0
002ZSS-01-T0 TE'69.L$ duiny pue Surdeaxpuur, 99A0]dWy Op 0} WAISAS YH MaN H ooquieg 7202/62/% ua1g,0
¥8G125-S£-20 T6'TLETS [BLI9IR] Jauueyg uodu, zz0z/Le/y uaug,0
0110Z5-01-10 STEL$ SOME ULIOA XB, uozewy ze0z/Lelv uaug,0
011025-0T-10 STLIS SOMZ ULIO] Xe[, uozZewy z2202/L2/% uaug,0
$¥8S125-S£-20 79'8¢€$ [eLIa3E Jouueq o3I, ze0z/sz/v ua1g,0
00%185-0T-10 66'71$ s3unaaj wooyz 10y uondrosqns A[Iuop WO00Z ze0z/2e/y usaug,0
st pIe) Jpal) Aq pred JI usug,
002255-01-10 L9TIV'ES JUNOISIP 9§ - S201A19s SuLioyiuoy 1anduwio) Joj urg A[puon SHomsweld zzoz/0z/y Ha.0
0090.5-1Z-20 88'68% wooy Jamnduio) |004 Ia15eH 10} POOMA]] joda( swoy 8y, 2202/%1/% uapg,0
0£T0ZS-01-10 009T1$ $3Y) 10pus A o] sdwe)s agersod sdsn 7202/ L/% uaug,0
¥8S1Z5-G£-20 +9'SZES [BLIS}R] Jauuey uosu], zzoz/s/v us3ug,0
0081 Jaquiny ple)
400D LIvdnd LNNOWY NOSYad JuRYPIN aLva "ON ‘JoY
zz0Z/1/s *HINOW




09E0ZSZEZ 67'8% JOUIUINS 10J SUOOEI0I3P S Ssalnl] 3921 Fejleq 7202/€/s 3J00A
00£2S52¢€7 00'6¥2$ Penuo) S1eaqIPM 7202/92/% 3J00N
0L£0ZSZET 9¥'8S% sayjddns ssaully uozewy zz0z/61/v 9J00N
09£0ZSZ€ET 86'LV$ jJuawdmba ssauwry uozewy 7202/S/% 2100
LB62 Iaquny p.Iey
00'S8$
00%¥185-01-20 00°01$ NHD [Bmauay uoneaynial vSAI syodg yanox SAVN zzoz/ze/y uewdalg
00%185-01-20 00013 NAJ [emauy UonesgnIa] VSAD 53110dS [AN0X SAVN 7202/22/% uews3aig
00%185-01-20 00'0T$ NHD [eMauly UOQedynIa] YSAD s110dS ANOX SAVN 720z/22/% uew3aig
00%185-01-20 00°0T§ HJ [EMauay Uuoneaynda) ysAd SHOdS ynox SAYN z20z/2e/v uewda.g
00¥185-01-20 00'SV$ NFD [eMaUIY UONEIYNIS) YSAD sHods ynox SAYN zz0z/11/¥ uewsa.g
L98T I2quunp p.Iej
¥Z'e8ES
TT£025-£€-20 9Y'EV$ sa|pueH dop woyuozewy 002/82/% ouuepy
T1ZE0ZS-£5-20 67'85$ Sour| eIawWeY) 10J 100p SS333Y 3 IR dn Yano) aampuIny WI0D'UOZBWY 00z/82/% ouuep
00209S-££-20 JAZASS [00} I2puly AN2ILTY Uy uozewy z20z/LT/y ouuely
00Z04S-£€-20 09'19% J91]Y J9[]Y SR10Q I3Ua) SSanT] wod'uozewy z202Z/S/v Oouue
LTE£07S-€€-20 120v1$ JBA MU I00[] 1ST/SWNNOEA 10 S} wod uozZewy 2202/S/+ ouuen
LZ€£0Z5-€£-20 20613 31eds T //100]J ST 10] YIIMS WNNDBA wod'uozewy 7202/S/v ouueiy
LZEOZS-EE-C0 66'L1$ I00]] pUz ysnig WnnoeA juawadejday wod'uozewy zz0z/s/v Ouuep
¥Z¥T JaquinN p.Je)
8T'LZLS
Z1+265-£0-20 00'0S$ nsodap din ppoy dure) uids pue Ae[d 720Z/€/sS Jaupedwneg
G14£65-90-20 86'7Z$ satjddns souaros ynoqe pe uozeury 7202/82/% Jaupeswneg
Z1¥16S-£0-20 00'SLT$ sdin pjay dure) PpUe[LIeJeS 7z0z/9t/v Jaupeswneg
112£65-90-20 £V'S$ saqddns yaid uozeury zzo0z/zel/y saupedwneg
TTLE65-90-20 86'€T$ senddns ya1d uozewy 7202/12/% Jaupe3wneg
112£65-90-20 £6'T9% safddns a4 uozZewy 7202/12/% Jaupedwneg
9ZBERS-L0-20 T6€1$ saijddns o3 uozewry zzoz/1z/v Jaupedwneg
ST.£65-90-20 29's$ sayddns sassep 10, aa1] 1ejjoq zzoz/12/y JjoupeSwneg |
9¥6£65-80-20 S¥'ZZ$ sarjddns [len Auung SIS zz0z/2x /v Jaupedwneg
11L£65-90-20 YIH$ sarddns souaios Inoqe pe a1, fefjoq zeoz/11/% Jaupe3wney
T1LE£65-90-20 6L%$ so1iddns 3Juams 1NOqe e SUdIIS[BM 7202/11/% laupedwneg
9v6465-80-20 56'65% saiddns [ren Auung uozZeuy 2202/ L% Jupeswneg |
9Z8£6S-£0-20 66'6$ sajjddns O3 uozeury ze0Z/ LY Jaupe3wneg
114€65-90-20 £6'¥S$ Na1d 10 saljjIanng ESGRERER zzoz/o/% JaupeSwneg
9%6£65-80-20 009¢€$ so1iddns yren Auung JosIe], 220Z2/s/¥ Jaupedwneg
9¥6£65-80-Z0 80°'%81$ sariddns [ren Auung MewEem 7202/S/% JaupeSwneg
LETS Isquiny pJIen
06’1163
UUBWLLIBH
00T1¥55-S€-20 00'611% spy uridg - uondriasqns 09piA owoad zz0z/1¢/¢ UUBWLLIDH
0090.5-2¢2-20 STETTS [00d Ja1IeH Jo] £ usig wnupunyy udis Jews zz0z/62/v UUBWLLIDH
00T%SS-5€-20 00'6S$ 99,1 3S0H 3USQIM A[YIUOW auIsugdm z70z/82/% UUBWLIBH
001+55-S€-20 96'ST$ uondrosqng auluQ aunquy], 05ed1y) 7202/82/% UUBLLLIBH
001¥SS-5€-20 00Z1$ uondisqng auluQ piesaH Alled 7202/%2/€ UuewLIBH
GObHSS-SE-20 0T°TS$ aseq onzAedsia 2202/ /% uuewLBH
M uS(s Yjem apis Bunsxa 10y 9 Jo 19¥oed suaj Juawsdejdey
001¥55-5€-20 66'C1$ uondiiosqng 0.4 a8ew] A[IUOJ BIPA] [BID0S Anjuo 014 7202/21/% UUBWLIBH
001%¥5S-S€-20 00'SLZ$ apIng AJIAIDY JWWING Jur[u( J0j UoRdLSqNS [ENSIq uopn|oS BIPAN SIB A zz0z/11/y uuewWIIIH




LOFSTTTS ‘[e0],
T0TZES
$15£65-80-20 6611 sarddng [g3109y 3due(q uozeury z20z/L2/v F2u3Wg
$15£65-80-20 STEIT [oIeddy ygeis adue(q U woisn) zz0z/61/% yRdwWs
$15£65-80-20 15'9ST SaWNIS0)) [B103Y 3dUe(q |ES10BaY |, 5,UBWISSISM 2202/L/v y2uRWS
L¥6£65-80-20 9Z'6£ uny 339 a1dso( uozewy z202/S/% yudWS
££81 J3quInu pJIe)
Z79'06¥%
SZ8£65-L0-Z0 67718 T'S'V'd 104 19l01d Ny Ae( S, 1310H uozZewy z702/92/% Sa.u0)
£18£65-L0-20 0€'6$ Bussi - se1jddng A11eq AepyMig Ay Aaed 7202/ST/¥ sa410L
00L095-12-20 L6'TLS Susi§ [00d uozewy 7202/%/% s9.10]
011025-01-20 86'1T$ Iepud[e) Ysa( uozewy 220Z2/02/% S3.10)
6£6£65-80-20 66'Z1$ PHHOM 33 pUnoly disnjy uozewy 7202/0Z/% 53110}
00,095-12-20 87'SZ$ S0 [00d uozewy 2202/02/% sali0)
SZ8£65-L0-20 8L0V$ A'Sy'd 104 109[014 11y AB( S, 19RO 931 Ie[[0Q 2202/61/% S9.110)
§Z8£65-L0-Z0 68'C1$ “A'S'v'd 10 sayddns Bupuea|) 11eJRISU] 7Z02/€1/% S9110)L
€18£65-L0-20 11°€01$ Aued Aepyuig Jo.11eH Uozewy 2202/01/% $9110)
SZ8£65-L0-20 L6'8E$ sarddns 11y Jo1seg ISV’ uozeury 2202/8/v sa110)
£18E£6S-£0-Z0 98'0S1$ Ayred Aepupig Jaarey UozZeuy 720Z/9/% sau0]
YA XA m Jaquinu —.-hNU
62 1LZ'6S
S01685-01-10 08'LV$ uonepalddy jJels sInuo( uedsun( 720Z/L2/% em
10Z08S-01-10 00°00LL$ Buruuejq o18a1en8 YHA0D 7202/ST/% Hem
0SZ185-0T-10 06'7L$ 0.0 Ynm Sunaspy youn s,Addey z20z/12/v UM
S01685-01-10 7L'89% Za1eZUOX) *] 03 YIH pIeog sjuewaduelly 3[qIpd 7202/02/% Hem
001085-01-10 06'€L$ S99, A1EJON ED{RZIDY SaLIejoN ISV WY 2202/91/% uem
S01685-01-10 S6'791'T$ e JusuIalnay 33y 10j pooy s,0uel3ge 2202/01/% nem
S01685-01-10 61'S1$ Q1ed uswainey 99y 10§ sarjddng 931 Ie[loq 220Z/L1% nEeMm
SOT68S-01-10 £8'621% A1ed 1usurainey a9y 10j sarjddng 3103 S49 2202/S/% Mem
£L58 Jaquny pred
96'EEF$
0L£0ZSZET 86'ST$ saljddns ssau3r] uozewy 220Z/%/S 2100\
0LE0ZSZET STHS$ sarjddns ssauily uozewy z20Z/%/S 2400




Financials

June 15, 2022

To the Finance Officer:

The payment of the above listed accounts has been approved by the Board of
Park Commissioners at their scheduled board meeting and you are hereby authorized to
pay the attached vendors from the appropriate funds.

President Treasurer



Motions / New business




MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT
BOARD MOTIONS
June 15, 2022

Administration and Finance Committee — Commissioner Khan, Chair

2023 — 2028 Strategic Plan: | move that the Board of Park Commissioners accept
the 2023 — 2028 Strategic Plan.

Audit Review: | move that the Board of Park Commissioners approve the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2021.

Statement of Receipts and Disbursements Report: | move that the Board of Park
Commissioners approve resolution #R-06-22 the Morton Grove Park District
Receipts and Disbursements Report for the year ending December 31, 2021.

Post Issuance Compliance Resolution: | move that the Board of Park
Commissioners approve the attached Resolution #R-07-22 stating that the district
is compliant with the applicable tax law requirements.




Memorandum

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners
From: Jeffrey Wait, Executive Director
Date: June 15, 2022

Regarding: 2023 — 2028 Strategic Plan Acceptance

Issue:
The 2023 — 2028 Strategic Plan needs to be accepted by the Board.

Discussion:

Over the last several months, staff has been working with Chuck Balling and Barb Cremin of
GovHR to update our strategic plan. Our current plan expires at the end of the year and
updating the plan is important to guide staff’s efforts in better serving the community.

A draft of the updated plan in attached.

Park Board Action:
For the Board of Park Commissioners to accept the 2023 — 2028 Strategic Plan.



2023-2028
STRATEGIC PLAN

Growing Greatness

MORTON GROVE
PARK RISTRICT



Contents and Acknowledgements

introductory Letter-Board President ..................... 3
Executive SUMMATIY ...coivvviiiieciiiiineeernisnnsissnisascans 4
Strategic Initiatives ........ooiiiimiiiii 11
Strengths, Weakness, Opportunites & Threats...... 45
Attachments ....coveveei i 48

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28




Dear Community Member,
It is my pleasure to present the Morton Grove Park District's Strategic Plan for 2023—-2028.

We appreciate the valuable feedback provided by residents through our 2022 Community Survey. This
information, along with input from the Board, staff and other key stakeholders formed the basis for this

plan.

This plan built on the prior strategic plan. Many of the objectives from the last plan have been
accomplished and several have been carried over.

Over the past six months, the Board and staff worked in three phases to update the plan:

1. Data review and distilling 2022 Community Survey findings, Comprehensive Master Plan
recommendations, status of initiatives from the previous strategic plan, and identifying the
strengths of the District, challenges ahead, and opportunities to grow and improve our service

to the community.
2. Staff planning and development of initiatives, tasks, and timelines to move the District forward.

3. Board of Park Commissioners review and approval

This updated plan establishes a roadmap guiding the Park District to achieve success in key areas of its
operation and provide the community with an increased sense of pride in their Park District and

community.

Thank you for taking the time to review this plan. If you have anyquestions, please feet freetocatt Jeff——
Wait, Executive Director, at 847-965-0383 or jwait@mgparks.com.

Sincerely,
Keith White

President, Board of Park Commissioners

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



Executive Summary

Morton Grove...

The Village of Morton Grove, lllinois (pop. 23,256) is a progressive, family-
oriented community located 15 miles northwest of downtown Chicago in
Cook County. Morton Grove’s unique location (between 1-94 and [-294),
combined with its dedication to delivering the highest level of services to
its residents, excellent schools, and abundance of park and forest preserve
land, make it an ideal community in which to live and work. Nearly 20% of the land in Morton Grove is
owned by the Cook County Forest Preserve and is dedicated to open space and recreation. Although
primarily residential in nature, Morton Grove’s 5.2 square miles also includes a healthy commercial and
industrial base. The community is bordered by the Villages of Glenview and Golf on the north, Skokie on

the east, and Niles on the south and west.

Morton Grove Park District

The Morton Grove Park District has been providing memorable experiences in parks and recreation
since its inception in 1951. As a separate municipal governing agency, the District is responsible for
providing parks, facilities and recreational programs for the community. The organization is led by five
(5) elected park commissioners, 24 full time staff and nearly 200 seasonal and part time employees. The
District owns and maintains ten facilities including two outdoor pools, a museum, four field houses, a
50,000-square foot community center and 14 parks totaling over 70 acres. The District is a member of
the lllinois Park and Recreation Association (IPRA) and the Illinois Association of Park Districts (IAPD).
The District also contracts with the Maine-Niles Association of Special Recreation to provide recreational

services to individuals with special needs.

In the past five years, the Morton Grove Park District has achieved many successes. It has transitioned
several key leadership positions on the Board of Park Commissioners and administration. Park District
finances remained stable despite the challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic. The District
demonstrated innovation and the ability to quickly adapt by successfully working through the pandemic
to offer recreational opportunities while complying with restrictions on group gatherings.

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



The District continued its commitment to engaging the community in its planning by holding numerous
community outreach meetings and also conducted two statistically valid community surveys in 2016 and
most recently in 2022 to obtain feedback from the community that guides the board and staff in
decision-making. Results of these surveys revealed:

e Strong community support

e Most residents have a favorable view of the District, its parks, facilities and recreation
programs.

e Individual comments expressed extreme satisfaction with the agency and its services.

e Positive feedback regarding the quantity and quality of programs provided, reasonable fees
and with staff.

e The District is inclusive, providing opportunities for participation by all ages and groups.

e The community of Morton Grove is seen as favorable to draw newcomers to the community.

The District also continues its commitment to working in the “spirit of intergovernmental cooperation”.
This was demonstrated by working with the Morton Grove Public Works Department to:

* Repair a water line break at the old Harrer Park Pool, sanitary line break at the Park’s garage and

a drainage line break at Oriole Park
o Continue to support the Morton Days setup, operation and take down

¢ Joint purchase of all gas and diesel fuel through the Village

The Board and staff worked collectively with the community and a citizen’s committee to pass a
referendum to replace the Harrer Park Pool. The pool was 54 years old and was well beyond the 35-year
life span of an outdoor pool facility in this part of the country. The pool experienced significant water
loss and had frequent breakdowns. A new pool was constructed and is set to open for the 2022 season.

The Morton Grove Park District has been recognized by the park and recreation and government finance
industries. The District has achieved designation as an lllinois Distinguished Agency by a committee of
the Illinois Association of Park Districts and the lllinois Park and Recreation Association. The District has
also maintained its status as an accredited member of the Park District Risk Management Agency
(PDRMA) with an “Excellence-Level A” rating for safety. For 20 consecutive years, the District received
the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Excellence in Financial Reporting Award and has

received a —AA bond rating

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



Morton Grove Park District Strategic Planning

In January 2022, the Morton Grove Park District Board and staff initiated the following process to
update the 2017-2022 plan. There were three phases to this process:

e Phase 1: Review and Issue Identification —This included data review and distilling feedback from
the 2022 Community Survey and the newly updated Comprehensive Master Plan. The process
focused on those items that were most important to the future success of the Park District over
the next five years, along with identifying the strengths of the District, challenges ahead and
opportunities to improve Park District services to the community.

e Phase 2: Strategic Initiative Development — Park District staff clarified and developed the
strategic initiatives and identified associated goals, objectives, tasks, and action timelines.

e Phase 3: Review and approval — The Morton Grove Board of Park Commissioners approved the

plan.

About the strategic planning process...

As part of the Strategic Plan updating for 2023-2028, the District
sought input that included:

e Conducting a community survey

e Several meetings with the Strategic Plan Executive Steering
Committee (ESC). The ESC consisted of senior-level Park
District leadership.

o A feedback session with the Park District Board of
Commissioners

e Review and reference of the 2022 Comprehensive Master Plan.
This extensive research effort included: Community visioning, individual park site evaluations,
assessment of existing facilities, and analysis of practices and procedures.

This process and the recommendations from the District’s 2022 Comprehensive Master Plan allowed the
District to identify major issues/initiatives/projects that need to be addressed over the next five years.
Issues were grouped by themes. These themes were consolidated into six forward-looking strategic
initiatives for the 2023-2028 timeframe.

invest in the Future of Our Community Through Revitalized Parks and Facilities
Reimaging Program Offerings

Attract and Retain Highly Qualified Employees

Foster Proactive Community Engagement and Support

Using Technology to Streamline Operations and Create Customer Friendly Processes
Financial Planning that Supports High Quality Services and Growth

o ° = M ==

A team leader was assigned to each initiative to:

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



e Study, receive input, and analyze each initiative.

e Clarify and define the initiative.
e Identify internal and external factors that may impact the District’s ability to move forward on

the initiative.
e Develop recommendations with specific steps that must be taken to address the stated

initiative.

Drafts of these initiatives and recommendations will be presented and reviewed at the June 15, 2022

Park Board meeting.

The illustration on the following pages summarizes the input and the resulting strategic initiatives.

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



3NINS Japbal 0] 13pDpa7
Aanins Ajunwiwor

zz0z 3y wolf sbujpuly -
sbuneaw Ayunwiwiod
Aubw papnouj byl

upj|d 121Sb|N anisuayaidwo)
2Z0z fo mainai ybnouoyy -

induj Ajjlunwwo)

upyd jpuif fo |jpaoiddp
pup S31pa ‘Mmainai pioog-
sajjjunyoddo pup
sanssy |021342 Aflauapi diay
03 uojssas indu} pipog-
induj paeog jied

SUOIIDPUBUIWO0IS
pup saniapizu; dojanap o3 yiom ffols
sanjipyiuy 31631043S i sajunytoddo
‘sanssi (0213143 Af11usapi 03
sbuilaaw wpay diysiapoay a|diinn
indui Jeis

sanneniul digajens

$955230.1d

HMoJH pue 1oddns pue
pue SeoIAI3S suopesadQ Juawagesu3 SEELR] I

Aljenp auljWwealss AUNWWo) paijiiend

pue syJed
pazi|elinay
ysnoayy
Alunwwo)
AnQ Jo ainin4
3Y3 U] 159AU|

SBuUlIRYO wesdoid

y8iH s1oddns 0 9AI1IROIg AlyBiH uieiay
1eya suluueld ASojouyaa] 131504 pue 1einy
|eloueuly 8uisn

guidew-ay

‘suolleiauag aining 10}
$924Nn0SaJ |eanjeu pue adeds uado 3uidaiosd sjiym ‘sapl|ige pue sale ||e jo ajdoad o) SujwwesSoid sA11ea.2 Y3nodyi salianoe
jeuoniealdas ajowoud pue 3)1| Alunwiwod o Alljenb syl yoiua 01 pa1HWWOD S| 19143SIJ H4ed 3A0ID UOLIOIA 3Y] :UOISSIAI

(8C0T-€70T) Buluue|d 213918115 101ISIQ )4Bd SAOID UOHON



8Z-€20T Ue|d 1891815 1211510 Y4ed AA0ID UOLON

a8ed 1xau panupuo)

spiepuels
301AJDS 19W03SND
pue uojed|uNLIWod

|BuUJDIUl UBYIBUBNS I

sdiysiosuods sdiysuone|as

sjuesd ‘s2ay e pue saoieid jutodpueis Juswanoaduw)
wesSosd se yons suopesado Ajunwwod Tual Sgeun pue aJueusjulEw ‘asn
Sulpuny Jo s32.N0S anouduwy R SUREN) £ WoJy sayis yJed ||e a3enjeal ‘v
aAneUIae 01 %oBqpas} 03 51043 4 : S1uapISaJ INO
as0w pling v azAjeue Supayjiew jo PrEUIRIE m:m._u. 03 SIUBWIJIUBYUD R
! pue 1|07 T AduSpIS pue UlBjuIBW /DNUIIUCD'E sped pue p|ai4 1no} s, 3211SIQ Y} Joy .
afpel SSBUDAIIDYD diys4spea| anlpe swes8oud 3s19AIp suondo ai0|dxa pue Ajnuap| ‘g
BN VIBJUIBIA| "€ dujssanoud A
e i et |y3 aseasnu| g Aq AlljigeIUNODIE pue aAIsnul UOI3E0| BUO OIU}
saJnpadsoud .m>EaE_ yoeanno pue pue jusuwamodus 9Jow 32NPOoJIU|'Z |ooyasasd Bunepljosuod Joy
pue sajd)jod J pUE SWIIUMOP Wwawadesus ucwEm>oEE_. Xiw suopdo alojdxa pue Ajuap| ¢
|=ioUELY 31epdQ) 2 sanpaj ysnoayy SIBARON'C Suiwwe.Soid 13jua)
ue(d wiay 03 JUBLIUOIIAUD sdiysuoine|a. JUSLIUOIIAUS aziwndo AJUNWIWo) M3IAaLIeld BY}
-8uo| ajepdn pue ASojouyda |euoissajoid gufuies| snonupuod 01 Y2Jeasal pue J0 3sn aininy ay3 1oy suonpdo
MAIA3L Ajlenuuy ‘T 9jgels B 3pinodd T anoidwy °T B SpINOId'T  SI1JIBW afelandl ‘T asn a10|dxa pue Aj3uap| T
[l q p pirolqg ! |axa pue AJ3usp

sassasoad Ajpusii
yImoig Jawio3sng ajeasn uoddns
pue saojnuss Ajjienb pue suojiesado | pue juswadedus sasfo|dws sefijioes pue syed

yaiy syroddns 3eyy auljweasls o3 Ajunwiwiod payienb Aysiy sSujiayo pazijennal ysnaayi Ajunwiwod
Sujuue|d (epueuly ABojouysay 3uisn angoeoud 193so4 ujelas pue ety wesBoxd JuBew-ey 4No JO 2Ny Y3 U) 1SAAU]

-



ot

uonewIoyU

|enueuly

JO UOIJRUIWISSIP
3y3 ajueyuy ‘7

S9IIAJIDS

paloeJjuod aienjeAd |9

uonepuno4
Sy4ed 9A0ID

UOMOA 3y dojanaq 'S

Yimo.s
pue sadjnias Ayjjenb

Y3y suaddns jeyy
Bujuue|g [epueury

5|00}
SUO|3EIUNWILLIOD
juawajdus)

pue 31eNn|eAT 't

SpJepuels 3JJAJ3s
J3WoISnd pue
uoleIuNWwWod
{ewau)
uayyBuans ‘g

sassasosd Ajpuaty
A9WI0)sSNd ajeand
pue suojjesado
auljweans o)
A3ojounass Buisn

ainyynd
jeuoneziuesio
|NYSSSIINS B 10
UOIS|A S,3313181Q
3y} ajeinwiod g

PLISIg Hded
3A0J5) UOLIOW
40y Bupyiom i

1S8493u1 9seasdu| L

weagoad

Buipieoquo

juswagedua $321N053J
SJUBYUd uewny Ioueyuy ‘g

03 sapualadwod

S3AIU3IU)
pieog uayiduains ¢

pue sjjjauaqg

sjuawasi8e ‘uonesuadwod
a1epdn aAnnadwod
Jo/pue dojansq g apInold ‘g

uoddns

pue juswadedus
Ajunwwod
andeosd 183504

saghojdws

payjienb Aysy
uteIad pue eIy

=¥
=) Gl

umacs umam.amnm

uonedniued
weifoud yauus o1
uonejndod as4anlp
1NO 03 AIAISS
13UJ01SNd pue
SUOIIRIIUNWWOD

Jno asueyuy 'y

s3uuayo wesSoud
uj Ayljiqeuieisns

|eldueUly UlBIUIBIA ‘€

s3upiayoe
weiSoad SujFew-ay

mcwv m:_ccm_._.u_wm«m._.ﬁ....uzum_a___v_..mm_w>9..u,=o€£z

riCh

3|qe|ieae
S9UI0J3Q QU0 J| 431Ul
uoneasdas Ajjunwwod e
104 Ajij1oey paso|d e asodiandas
03 Apnis AlljiqIsea) e 1anpuo) £
sjuawanosduw)
yJed |eJausp parla|as ssauppy ‘9

$3502 32Npal J0/pue |043u0d
03 Ajjuaiays aiow alesadg g

sapy(1oe} pue sysed
pazi|eAaa y3noayz Ayunwiwod
AN0 JO N3N} Y3 uj 359AU|




Strategic Initiatives and Recommendations

STRATEGIC INITIATIVE #1: INVEST IN THE FUTURE OF OUR COMMUNITY
THROUGH REVITALIZED PARKS AND FACILITIES

The Morton Grove Park District will endeavor to provide relevant, well maintained,
safe and updated parks and facilities to its users that appropriately reflect the
interests and needs of its residents within the financial ability of the Park District.

DEFINE THE ISSUE

The Morton Grove Park District provides a comprehensive system of public parks, fieldhouses, two
outdoor pools, a museum, a 50,000 square foot community center, and recreation amenities that greatly
contribute to the quality of life of its residents. The park and recreation facilities are well used and are a
highly regarded element of life to its residents. They serve as the foundation of the Park District by
promoting community activity through programs, services, events, and all manner of active/passive
recreational pursuits for the community and visitors.

Morton Grove is a mature community with no opportunity to expand beyond its current borders.
Therefore, it becomes critical to protect and preserve its existing parks and facilities by continually
conducting preventative maintenance, repairs, and renovations to assure that these community assets
will be attractive and available to its residents now and in the future. As residents seek new recreational
space to expand recreational programs and services, it further becomes imperative to seek out and
consider re-purposing or revitalizing existing space within the community and/or acquiring available space
through partnerships.

The District’s existing facilities present a challenge in that many of them are aging and in need of
renovation, revitalization, replacement, or maintenance. To date, the District has maintained park
properties, including athletic fields, playgrounds, sport courts and passive areas in a consistent and
appropriate manner. They, along with the recreation center, outdoor pools and museum can continue to
be maintained at a high level with continued diligence, a comprehensive preventative maintenance plan
and the planned repair/replacement of major park and facility components. The 2022 “Growing Greatest”
Comprehensive Master Plan did an excellent job of identifying areas where parks and facilities were in
need of attention. Implementation of the Comprehensive Master Plan’s action plan and the funding for
the identified maintenance, repairs, renovation and revitalization of parks and facilities needs to be a

priority for the District over the next few years.

As community demographics change and new recreational trends evolve, community members desire
new or upgraded facilities. The District must be positioned to adapt and explore options to meet the
interests of residents. Based on those responding to the 2021 Community Survey, residents expressed a

need or interest in:

11



An indoor walking/running track (58%, down from 69% in 2018 — pre-COVID)
An indoor pool (51%, consistent with 52% in 2018)
Fitness Center (43%, down from 55% in 2018).

At least one in five are also interested in:

Rental space for meetings, events, etc. (32%, up from 25% in 2018)
Gym space (28%, nearly consistent with 32% in 2018)

Space for arts, crafts, theater programs, etc. (26%, not tested in 2018)
Program space for group fitness (25%, down from 33% in 2018)
Dedicated space for seniors (21%, down from 32% in 2018).

Funding for future capital improvements continues to be a significant challenge for the District. The
District’s non referendum bonding authority has been dedicated to debt retirement of the Oriole pool
project and is committed until 2032. While there is a planned funding program for many of the District’s
assets, the program is limited to replacing existing furniture, fixtures, and equipment. It does not address
funding for new capital development. A successful referendum in 2020 provided for renovation and
ongoing maintenance at Harrer Pool. Any significant new capital projects however, will take efforts to
secure grants, public/private partnerships, etc. The last resort would be a referendum.

INTERNAL FACTORS
What things within the Park District (both positive and negative) will affect our ability to move forward

on this initiative?

The lack of non-referendum bonding power to fund a larger project.

Potential lack of funding as available funds get earmarked for other purposes.

The need for staff and Board support for those projects selected vs. ones that may not make the
cut.

Communication to staff and residents to keep them informed and involved in the process.
The cost of operation and maintenance of new facilities and the opportunity for the District to
generate new revenues through operations (cost/benefit analysis).

What impact will decisions have on existing operations?

Space necessary to build new facilities

Needs met through the availability of similar use facilities (private sector businesses or other
local public agencies)

Ability of staff to take on new projects considering their current workload.

Impact to existing facilities/parks — potential loss of open space already at a premium in the
community

Long-term effect of new facilities on capital repairs and replacement program funding.

Incorporating latest technology, eco-friendly systems, and accessibility into new facility designs

12

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



e Potential need for additional parking facilities to accommodate increased use of new or

expanded facilities.

EXTERNAL FACTORS
What things outside the control of the District (both positive and negative) will affect our ability to move
forward on this initiative?
Availability and increased costs of materials and labor due to inflation and both commodity and

labor shortages

Availability of potential buildings/sites to repurpose for recreational needs

Local government support/oversight (permitting, zoning, potential partnerships, etc.)
Cost/accessibility to local utilities (gas, water, electricity, sewer)

Level of competition within the community and/or service area

Resident and stakeholder support for projects

Availability of public/private partnership opportunities and both state and federal grants.

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

13



| ExIr fasiy a din
addition/expansion.

‘ Supt
Parks/Facilities

Explore the feasibility of building renovations. Supt
Parks/Facilities
Explore the feasibility of public requests for: Supt

e Pickleball courts
Peewee Gym

Updated playground
Renovated tennis courts
Additional parking

Dog park

Parks/Facilities

Develop a cost/eneﬁt alysis toexplore Supt of
potential cost savings. Finance
Conduct a site study for future locations. Supt

Parks/Facilities
Develop plans to construct a Preschool and Supt

Daycare center to consolidate and expand
existing programs into a centralized, state-of-
the-art facility.

Parks/Facilities

Conduct a needs assessment and investigate
licensures and costs of infant care.

Review use levels and cost analysis to maintain
and operate the field houses.

Supt of
Recreation

Supt
Parks/Facilities

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



Explore feasibility, costs and safety measures to
add outside access bathrooms with possible
automated opening and closing devices to the
field houses.

Supt
Parks/Facilities

Investigate and conduct a feasibility study on the
need and estimated construction costs of
renovating and repurposing one or more of the
field houses to reduce operating and
maintenance costs and to serve camp and picnic
uses.

Supt
Parks/Facilities

equipment for operating more efficiently.

Objective: Evaluate all park sites from a use, | Fiscal Yr. Assigned to:
maintenance, and improvement standpoint
Identify pa;k sites for future amenities. Supt
Parks/Facilities
Evaluate and create a list of current park Supt
amenities for repairs or replacement (i.e., paths, Parks/Facilities
benches, backstops etc.).
Investigate options for new amenities. Supt
Parks/Facilities
Investigate lighting Field #4 at Harrer Park. Supt
Parks/Facilities
Objective: Operate more efficiently to control and/or Fiscal Yr. Assigned to:
reduce costs '
Identify and explore ideas, processes, and Supt

Parks/Facilities

Identify and explore ideas for controlling and/or
reducing maintenance costs.

Supt
Parks/Facilities

Decrease environmental impacts and
sustainability through green initiatives.

Supt
Parks/Facilities

Create an hoc environmental task force.

Executive
Director

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

15



survey.

' Explore suggestions from the munity input

1 supt

Parks/Facilities

Explore park sites for additional shelters or shade

structures.

Supt
Parks/Facilities

Conduct a condition assessment of shelters and

pavilions.

Supt
Parks/Facilities

Explore the feasibility of adding new technology
to park system i.e., wi-fi in parks, solar path
lighting and electric vehicles.

replacement plan.

Commit to asset replacement as per

Supt
Parks/Facilities

Parks/Facilities

Prioritize and address the Priority 1 2023-2026 Supt
recommended action items from the 2022 Parks/Facilities
Comprehensive Master Plan.

Prioritize and address the Priority 2 2025-2028 Supt

recommended action items from the 2022
Comprehensive Master Plan.

Parks/Facilities

Prioritize and address ADA Priority 1
improvements as per ADA audit.

Supt
Parks/Facilities

ire an architectural firm to eva the cost of

renovating and repurposing the building.

Director

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28




Develop a list of proposed uses, demand

Executive

projections and an operational pro forma Director

identifying potential revenues and expenses to

determine financial feasibility.

Identify potential partners and grants Executive

(neighboring agencies, private partners, support Director

groups) that might assist in funding.

Explore funding options and community support. Executive
Director

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

17



STRATEGIC PLAN INITIATIVE #2: RE-IMAGINING PROGRAM OFFERINGS

Changing demographics and rising customer expectations require that the Morton
Grove Park District continually gains insight into its residents’ interests, adapt its
programming to meet those needs and broaden the appeal of program offerings to all
segments of the population. In doing so, the District seeks to instill a culture of
continual improvement and creativity as it works to differentiate itself from other local
agencies and be the “go-to” organization for recreation opportunities in the area.

DEFINE THE ISSUE

Park and recreation agencies are continually faced with new challenges in meeting the needs of a changing
community. An understanding of recreation trends as well as patterns of demographic change is
important to the continued programming success of the Morton Grove Park District. Future recreation
programming must represent the demographic diversity of Park District users to ensure ongoing customer
satisfaction, inclusivity, and support throughout the community. The Morton Grove Park District solicited
community input as part of its 2022 Comprehensive Master Planning process to help assess community
interest when planning future programs and events across various segments of the population.

The Village of Morton Grove’s population has seen a slight increase in population since 2010, although
the rate of increase has decreased since 2015. Great schools, low crime rates and competitive cost-of-
living makes Morton Grove a desirable place to live. The age segment of Morton Grove residents ages 55
to 84 years old is growing rapidly while those in the 0-25 years of age bracket are declining. While the
population has remained stable, the subtle demographic changes within Morton Grove's population
require a review of park services in order to meet a variety of needs. For example, many seniors within
the community have an increased interest in different types of recreation activities and amenities than
those currently provided, such as more senior recreation, mid-day programs,'_and volunteer opportunities.
The desire for increased senior and active adult programming was also re-affirmed in the feedback from
the most recent community survey and provides an opportunity to better meet the interests of this

segment.

The community is also ethnically diverse. The largest demographic shift has been an increase in Asian
residents, representing a wide-ranging group of nationalities. As of 2019, residents who identified as
“Asian alone” represented 30% of the population (up from 22% in 2000). Culturally, Morton Grove has
53.3% of residents that speak a language other than English. Of these non-English speaking languages,
Chinese, Tagalog, Korean and other IndoAsian languages make up one of the largest groups. Ethnic
diversity provides an opportunity to create events that recognize and celebrate inclusion and diversity of
various groups within the community.

Based on the results of community input gathered as part of the 2022 Comprehensive Master Plan, the
Morton Grove Park District enjoys a high satisfaction rate among residents related to program offerings
and events. Nearly half of those responding reported that someone in their household participated in a
District program or event in the past year. The most frequently cited participation occurred at summer

outdoor concerts (25%), special events such as the Egg Hunt, Daddy-Daughter Dance, etc. (14% -- down
18

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



from 27% in pre-COVID 2018), youth sports and/or athletics (13%) and fitness/exercise/training programs
(13%).

Satisfaction with MGPD programs and events overall is also especially high and has increased since the
previous survey in 2018. Relatively few respondents to the survey could offer specific suggestions for
improvement. Residents did offer, however, a wide range of suggestions for potential programs and
events for all ages. Topping the list of suggestions for programming and events were more/better fitness
and sports programs, more offerings/activities geared for seniors (7%), more youth programming (6%),
more special events (5%) and more programming for adults (5%). The recent renovation of Harrer Pool
also provides opportunities for new aquatics-related programs such as scuba and aqua fitness. In general,
programming space is limited and impacts the number and types of programs that can be offered.

The National Recreation and Park Association’s detailed report on Park and Recreation Trends for 2021
suggests that educational programs (62.2%), holiday and other special events (up to 81.6%) and adult
sports teams (59.1%) are the trends to look out for.

A list of the 10 top-most planned programs within the parks and recreation industry are:

e Group exercise programs

e Teen programming

e Fitness programs

e Mind-body balance programs such as yoga
e Programs for active older adults

e Educational programs

e Environmental education programs

e Holidays and other special events

e Adult sports teams

e Special needs programs

The pandemic with its restrictions on group gatherings demonstrated the District’s ability to quickly adapt
and be innovative as it shifted from traditional program offerings to develop and implement 11 new
creative opportunities to engage the community. Nationally, the pandemic also brought about the
growth of e-sports, including virtual team competitions. In Morton Grove, there was limited community
interest in the Park District’s initial attempts to provide E-sports programs. This is a program area that
should continue to be monitored for increased interest.

One of the external challenges in providing recreation programs is that there are a number of other
agencies that offer recreational opportunities that may compete with programming offered by the
Morton Grove Park District. This competition leads to a duplication of services that dilutes participation
and adds additional burden to the taxpayers to support the operation of multiple agencies. The District
should continuously fook for opportunities to collaborate on potential partnerships, especially with other
governmental agencies.

In order to continue to enhance the quality of life for our residents, the District must continue its success
in providing recreational programs and events to the community by instilling a culture of continual
improvement, seeking continuous feedback, utilizing available data for analysis and benchmarking, being

19

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



adaptable, creative, and re-imagining the programs and events that can be offered. Program offerings
should bring value to the community where the benefits received exceed the costs to the participant. In
addition, the core program offerings will remain focused on what the District does best for each major
program area while adding new and exciting opportunities when facilities are available, and a new
program can be financially sustainable.

INTERNAL FACTORS
What things within the Park District will affect our ability to move forward on this initiative?

Availability of program space

Staff turnover rate

Data analysis and financial reporting capabilities

Ease of registration process

Effective marketing to reach all segments of the population

Changing the perspective that Park District offerings are primarily for youth
Keeping fees affordable

Developing innovative and creative program offerings

Complacency

Affordability for the residents

EXTERNAL FACTORS
What things outside the control of the District (both positive and negative) will affect our ability to

move forward on this initiative?

e o e

Ability to find/train qualified program instructors/leaders

Ability to find/retain quality independent contractors
Cooperation from other agencies

Competition from private business and other agencies
Duplication in community programs; potential for “mission creep”
Diversity of population

Health and safety concerns (virus transmission, concussions etc.)
Lack of participant feedback to program surveys

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

20



ACTION PLAN

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

Objective: Leverage metrics and research to optimize programming FISCAL | ASSIGNED
mix. YEAR TO:
Continue to provide customer-oriented recreation activities that Supt of
address diversity and changing demographics. Recreation
i Include basic, core, instructional and specialized
programming.
ii.  Annually review program offerings and identify areas of
deficiency.
iii. Evaluate programs that are not reaching targeted
participation and/or revenues and modify or discontinue.
Send out program evaluations every quarter to evaluate existing Supt of
programs and identify trends. Recreation
Survey facility users to evaluate usage, customer service, Supt of
amenities, and equipment. Recreation
Collect demographic information and use it to help make Supt of
programming changes. Recreation
Objective: Introduce more inclusive and diverse programs and park FISCAL | ASSIGNED
enhancements to our residents. YEAR TO:
Expand evening and weekend programming and scheduling. Supt of
Recreation
Implement a “loyalty” program to reward patrons that are Supt of
frequent users of District programming. Recreation
Research possibility of additional program space at schools, Executive
building additions, under-used outdoor space. Director
More inclusive in our outdoor play areas. Expand opportunities to Supt of
offer more diverse options such as cricket pitch, dedicated soccer Recreation
field.
Enhance program offerings for active adults and seniors. Supt of
Recreation
Explore opportunities for programming at the outdoor pools. Supt of
Recreation
Expand fitness and sports programming for youth and adults Supt of
including outdoor fitness. Recreation
21




contract with independent contractors to provide Supt of

Identi and

programming where specific/advanced skills or specialized Recreation

equipment is required.

Coordinate programs with other agencies to provide Supt of

comprehensive recreation opportunities. Recreation

Increase Recreation Department portion of District’s total Supt of

revenue over a five-year period by establishing pricing Finance

philosophies using categories of services guidelines.

Reinstate and/or develop new revenue producing programs. Supt of
Recreation

rvice hours for in-person registration.

e guest se

Increas

Registration

Coordinator
Expand further onto other social media platforms. Marketing

Manager
Cross-promote with other businesses. Marketing

Manager
Create an inclusive environment by recognizing various other All Staff
cultural traditions and holidays that our residents celebrate.

22

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28




STRATEGIC INITIATIVE #3: ATTRACT AND RETAIN HIGHLY QUALIFIED
EMPLOYEES

Attracting and retaining high quality, engaged employees requires the Park District to be
innovative and creative in seeking out new avenues to reach potential employees, and
assuring that the leadership, culture, organizational values, compensation, and benefits
encourage employees to consider the Morton Grove Park District as a place they would
recommend to their colleagues and friends to work.

DEFINE THE ISSUE

As a service-based organization; the best way to ensure positive experiences for Morton Grove residents
is by hiring, developing, and retaining the most qualified staff to provide those services. The labor market
is more competitive than ever. The onset of the pandemic has accelerated what had been a steady
increase in the rate of people leaving state and local government employment. Nationwide, the annual
separation rates increased from 6.1 percent in 2010 to 9.7 percent in 2016, then seemed to stabilize from
2017 through 2019. In 2020, that separation rate shot up to a record 11.7 percent, according to data from
the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS). Separations, which includes retirements, stabilized in late 2020. But
that changed in 2021, with the monthly rate more than doubling between April and August.

The Morton Grove Park District faces competition for employees not only from neighboring park districts
but also from retail and other private businesses. As with many businesses and organizations, the Morton
Grove Park District is finding it increasingly difficult to attract and retain talented employees due to a
shrinking candidate pool. This is especially true with part time and seasonal staff. Competition for
lifeguards and seasonal maintenance staff is particularly tight. At the same time, increases to minimum
wage, the cost of benefits and the competition for employees is driving up labor costs. Additionally,
competition for recreation professionals is also increasing. Fewer individuals are choosing to enter the
public recreation field due to historically lower pay rates and the need for evening and weekend work

hours.

Many park districts have a relatively flat organizational structure with limited upward mobility. For
recreation professionals seeking advancement opportunities, it is often necessary for individuals to move
from smaller park districts to larger ones to gain broader experience and increasing levels of responsibility.
While some turnover is inevitable, there are other fundamental changes taking place in the overall
workplace. More full-time employees are seeking meaningful work, better work/life balance and

opportunities for working from home.

In recent years, the Morton Grove Park District has worked diligently to build a core team of professionals
to provide programs, maintain Park District physical assets and provide business services to support the

23

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28




mission of the Park District. One key to its ongoing success will be the continued ability to attract, develop

and retain staff.

It has long been recognized that an organization’s culture and values have a direct impact on its ability to
attract and retain highly qualified staff. It has been reported that at least one-third of job seekers would
pass up the perfect job if the organization’s culture was a bad fit. In one survey more than 70% of workers
cited culture as a factor influencing their decision to work at a particular organization. A positive
workplace culture contributes to better employee satisfaction and engagement, reduced employee
turnover and higher employee retention. A positive organizational culture also embeds a clear set of
positive values into an organization, fosters employee engagement, promotes professional development,
and recognizes employee contributions to the success of the organization.

Successful customer-focused organizations seek out active leaders who are committed to serving others
and are directly involved with their employees, form genuine connections, provide encouragement,
support personal development, and generally become their cheerleaders. In an effort to continue to
attract and retain a team of highly qualified, trained and motivated staff, the District has to explore
innovative and creative ways to attract new employees, ensure that its compensation and benefits are
competitive in the marketplace, continue to drive a positive culture throughout the organization and keep
a pulse on employee expectations to assure that the Morton Grove Park District is an employer they can
recommend to colleagues and friends. The District needs to further refine its core values, striving for a
work environment that continues to create trust, delivers quality parks and services and influences a
positive culture throughout the organization. The credit for the success and growth of the Park District

goes to the staff who work hard to serve the community.

INTERNAL FACTORS
What things within the Park District will affect our ability to move forward on this initiative?

o Need for more innovation and creativity. There is a need to think outside the box and
understand employment trends to find new and effective ways to recruit, retain and
recognize employees.

e Ineffective communication. Effective listening and communication lead to stronger
employee engagement by increasing staff cohesion, reducing silos and providing a
better understanding of what motivates and retains employees.

e Funding constraints. Overall operating costs continue to rise at a faster pace than the
ability to raise revenue to offset those costs. There is increasing demand for the use of
the Park District’s available funds which requires that the District set priorities that
include investments in staff, technology, infrastructure and other business needs.

e Outdated recognition program. Consistent, genuine efforts to recognize employees for
their contribution inspires and motivates employees to do their best work, increases

24

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



employee engagement and contributes to a positive work culture.

o Lack of upward mobility. Due to the nature of our business with a relatively flat
organizational structure, the potential to move upward, or be promoted is limited,
therefore causing staff to look elsewhere.

EXTERNAL FACTORS
What things outside the control of the District (both positive and negative) will affect our ability to

move forward on this initiative?

e Competition for employees. As a smaller agency, it may appear that a larger district has
more to offer to an employee. Larger districts have more employees which allow
upward mobility, and growth or promotions into higher positions. There is limited
opportunity for advancement within the Morton Grove Park District. In addition,
competitors are no longer only neighboring park districts but also any private business,
such as retail operations, food service and private fitness centers that also rely heavily
on part-time or entry level workers.

e Labor Costs. Minimum wage increases, competitors offering starting wages higher than
minimum wage and the increasing cost of employee benefits

e Weather dependent facilities. High school and college age students rely on summer jobs
to fund their activities throughout the year. Reduced staffing or pool closures due to
weather conditions make summer earnings unpredictable and make jobs less attractive.

e Resident expectations. Our residents expect us to deliver excellent customer service, not
only with our programs and special events, but equally with our staff.

s Demands of the recreation profession. It is often said that recreation professionals work
so that our community can play. This means that staff must be available to work
weekends, holidays, and evenings when our patrons are able to use the recreational
opportunities that we offer. We are also a business that relies on direct interaction with
our patrons. These realities limit our flexibility to provide work from home opportunities
or jobs that offer a stable 9-5 core business day that contribute to a more desirable
work/life balance.

e Growing the future park and recreation leaders. There is a need more than ever to
develop interest in working for the Morton Grove Park District by attracting, training,
and retaining a diverse staff that better reflects the diversity of our community.

25

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



ACTION PLAN

Objective: Provide a continuous learning environment Fiscal Assigned to:
_ Wil Year
Develop core competencies for leadership positions. HR Generalist
Provide staff opportunities to participate in ongoing Executive Director
training.
Provide preschool teachers opportunity to participate in
CEUs through the District. Supt of Recreation
Evaluate and revise new employee orientation and HR Generalist
training program.
Continue participation in State and National Executive Director
organizations to develop strong leaders and increase
knowledge of industry best practices.
Conduct quarterly District wide staff trainings to include Executive Director
part and full time staff. (Below are specific examples)
e Safety
e Equity, Inclusion and Diversity
e Technology Integration
e Hiring practices and compliance
Objective: Motivate improvement, empowerment, and Fiscal Assigned to:
Year '

accountability by active leadership

Clearly define and communicate goals and expectations.

Executive Director

Ensure accountability-monitor and report on progress of
individual, department, and agency goals. Provide
encouragement and recognition.

Executive Director

Develop a leadership development program

Executive Director

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

26



Revise performance evaluation to include core HR Generalist
competencies and goals-integrate discussion on
employee aspirations and what they can do to help gain
additional experience

Create new guest service and standards trainings to Registration
motivate continuous improvement and empowerment. Coordinator

Develop a purpose statement and objectives for a HR Generalist
District-wide customer service committee.

Conduct Annual Employee Survey for both full time and HR Generalist

part time.

Conduct an annual all-staff training session on HR Generalist
customer service to standardize methods and
techniques of service provided to community.

Improve communication between staff members by: Executive Director

i.  Conducting an annual survey.

ii. Holding quarterly meetings with staff to provide
updates and a forum for staff feedback.

n ide mmunicat HR Generalist

Identify ortunitito provide and communicae
availability of incentives/perks to part time staff.

Conduct a comprehensive salary and benefits analysis HR Generalist
every 3-5 years.

Develop an internship and/or lifeguard-in-training HR Generalist
program.

27

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



Onbord and mentor Human Resource Professional to Executive Director
lead recruiting efforts, hiring and retention of
employees.

Enhance the on boarding for all employees HR Generalist

i. Welcome packet
ii. Identify training requirements for each job
iii. Develop tracking procedures to monitor

progress

Explore ways o offer oreigh scho n oIIge—
based job shadowing and leadership development.

"HR Generalist

Develop more attractive recruiting materials. Marketing
Manager
Work more closely with community organizations to HR Generalist

recruit staff for part-time jobs (schools, churches, Park
District volunteers).

Define and formalize organizational values. Executive Director

Develop plan to communicate and instill values Executive Director
throughout the organization.

28

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



STRATEGIC INITIATIVE #4: FOSTER PROACTIVE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND
SUPPORT

Fostering community engagement requires a commitment and plan for keeping
community members informed, consulted, and proactively involved in order to build
trust as well as support, create eﬁ’ective governance, and assist the Board of Park
Commissioners and staff to make the best decisions toward fulfilling its mission to the
community. Bulldlng strong. relationships with other governmental agencies and local
organizations brings value to the Morton Grove Park District and the community at
large.

DEFINE THE ISSUE

The Morton Grove Park District’s mission is a commitment to “complementing the community’s quality
of life, economic capacity, health and wellness through recreational opportunities while protecting
natural resources”. To help fulfill its mission, the Morton Grove Park District’s elected officials and staff
need and value community input and engagement. This helps build trust and cooperation. The District is
finding it increasing difficult to get more members of the community proactively involved in the Park
District whether through volunteerism, providing input on the direction and priorities for the District, or
other means.

The concept of community engagement is based on community members being informed, consulted, and
involved in order to build trust and support, create effective governance and provide input to make the
best decisions for the community. Success can be maximized by ongoing engagement with both
community members-at-large as well as key community stakeholders and leaders at the Village, local
school districts and other community organizations.

Engagement with leaders and stakeholders of local public jurisdictions provides an opportunity to address
organizational interaction, clarify roles and responsibilities, explore opportunities for shared space,
collaborate on environmental sustainability issues and work together to conserve and appropriately use
the finite resources that public agencies have been entrusted with, even if at times the primary goals,
objectives and needs of each agency may not always completely align. Going forward, communication
and engagement with other public agencies needs to evolve into being more proactive and forward-
looking, rather than reactionary. It also should take a more global view on how to best meet the
community’s needs and resources rather than address issues primarily within individual silos of
responsibility. To be successful, dialogue needs to be open, consistent, and ongoing with effective
listening with the intent of mutual respect and trust for the good of all stakeholders. Feedback from other
local agencies suggests a common interest in re-opening dialogue to improve communication and identify
opportunities for collaboration. Leadership is needed to push the initiative forward. The Morton Grove
Park District can “work in the spirit of intergovernmental cooperation” by setting up an agenda and

scheduling an initial meeting of the agencies.
29

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



The Morton Grove Park District also seeks to increase community engagement with the community-at-
large to best meet the needs and aspirations of the community. The information provided through
community input will be considered along with other factors as the Board and staff work together to make
the best decisions for the community and set the direction and priorities for the District. Public
involvement contributes to better decision-making, provides an opportunity for diverse perspectives to
be heard, increases transparency, and creates a greater sense of community ownership. An environment
that fosters trust, open communication and good governance is essential to achieving a high level of
community engagement and support.

As the Village of Morton Grove continues to attract more new residents with highly diverse backgrounds
or cultures and the needs of existing residents change, it is also essential to increase outreach to the
community to educate, solicit feedback and create awareness of opportunities for community
involvement. Marketing plays a key role in getting the message to the community. The Park District should
create a plan using multiple platforms/tools for informing and educating both new and existing
community members. This plan can set communication plans for the programs, services, and value that
the Park District brings to our diverse community as well as the many ways the public can become involved
and included in the Park District through volunteerism or by providing input that can be considered by the

Board and staff during the decision-making process.

INTERNAL FACTORS

What are the things within the Park District that will affect its ability to move forward on this initiative?

e Effective communication and marketing campaigns

e Effective and respectful exchange of dialogue and listening to the feedback provided
e Clearly defined roles and expectations as to how the feedback will be used

e Making community engagement a priority

e Time constraints; difficulty in scheduling

e Lack of follow-up
e Using multiple platforms to find the best ways to reach out to various segments of the

community

EXTERNAL FACTORS

What are the things outside of the control of the Park District that will affect its ability to move forward

on this initiative?

e Personal Commitments
Complacency and lack of willingness to do more
e Special Interest groups that do not reflect the interests of the community-at-large
e Inability to break down “silo” thinking
e Lack of a commitment to collaboration with some agencies and organizations

30

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



e Parks, open space and a safe, healthy community environment are important “economic

drivers” for home values

ACTION PLAN
Dt_;_jecﬁyg; Improve professional relationships through engagement | Fiscal | Assigned
and outreach. : AT Year | to:
Strive to become fhe Village agency of choice and a trusted Executive
partner in the community by developing trusting working Director
relationships with all stakeholders-adding this requirement to
the leadership team’s annual performance plan.
In time of need, provide other agencies with support in the Executive
most effective and efficient way possible. Director
Coordinate leadership meetings with other local taxing Executive
agencies to enhance communications and partnerships. Director
Annually update the Park Board on the Park District’s Executive
private/public partnerships. Director
Increase community engagement by completing an annual Executive
review of accomplishments and/or the development of an Director
annual report.
Encourage Park district leadership to participate in at least one Executive
community service club. Director
Objective: Increase the effectiveness and efficiency of marketing Fiscal | Assigned
efforts to enhance community outreach. Year to:
Update the website Marketing
Manager
Maintain the monthly Social Media schedule to ensure Marketing
distribution across all channels Manager
Create and release Brand Standards and Graphic Style Guide to Marketing
all staff. This guide will give staff the tools to ensure that the Manager
Morton Grove Park District materials are consistent.
31

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



Utilize other social media platforms to promote District and Marketing

programs other than Facebook. Manager
Objective: Develop and/or update agreements | Fiscal | Assigned
L iy RSN Year | to:
Review and update agreements with Village of Morton Grove Executive
e Morton Grove Days (new) Director

Joint Access and Parking Lot Sharing (Expires 2021)
e Museum ground (Expires 2025)
e Shared services and equipment (Open-ended)

Review and update agreements with School Districts Executive
e #63 (new) Director
e #67 (Open-ended)

#70 (Open-ended)

#219 (Expired)

Administrative Contracts Executive
e Executive Director Contract Director
e Corporate counsel (open-ended)
Niles Park District — Resident rates for certain programs Executive
Director
Museum agreement with Historical Society (Open-ended) Executive
Director
Morton Grove Baseball Softball Association Executive
Director
American Youth Soccer Organization Executive
Director
Explore potential agreement with Morton Grove Library Executive
Director
Explore a potential agreement with Niles Township Executive
Director
32

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



Objective: Strengthen Board competencies to enhance engagement |  Fiscal | Assigned

eyl e ENear i eR0T T
Compile or develop a comprehensive board policy handbook Executive
to strengthen decisions and to ensure long-term adherence to Director
those decisions.
Provide pre-election packets and new Board member Executive
orientation. Director
Make available state and national park and recreation Executive
conferences. Director
Participate in Board member training opportunities. Executive

Director

Closely monitor and provide timely legislative updates to Executive
Board regarding state legislation impacting parks and Director
recreation.
Attend Legislative Conference annually and share information Executive
with Park Board and leadership team. Director
Seek opportunities for legislators and Park Board members to Executive
meet to build stronger relationships. Director

33

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



STRATEGIC INITIATIVE #5: USING TECHNOLOGY TO STREAMLINE OPERATIONS
AND CREATE CUSTOMER FRIENDLY PROCESSES

The use of technology to streamline operations is essential to providing cost effective
solutions to business needs, creating effective tools for decision-making, and freeing up
staff time to concentrate on core business functions like program development and

implementation.

Customer-friendly processes are those avenues, and the steps residents must take, to
conduct business with the Park District. Customers want processes that make it quick
and easy to find program information, sign up, and pay for services offered by the
Morton Grove Park District.

DEFINE THE ISSUE

In today’s environment, where consumers are seeking more high quality, value-oriented services than
ever before, it is critical that the District continually seeks to improve the level of service and convenience
offered throughout the organization. The District’s success will depend on taking resident needs and input
into consideration while continuously improving processes using technology that make it easier for the
customer to do business with us.

Based on information from the November 2021 community survey, focus is particularly needed on easier
navigation of the District’s website and the program registration process. 28% of responses indicated that
the website is the preferred source of information for Park District information (up from 21% in 2018) and
that the printed Program guide is now preferred by 31% of responses (down from 45% in 2018). In
addition, the 2021 survey showed that only 19% of residents reported registering for programs on the
District’s website. Of those, 62% had a positive experience with 30% expressing some dissatisfaction with
the experience. Shifting to more online customer-friendly methods to provide information about the Park
District and to encourage online registration will allow more timely communications and lower operating
costs.

Emphasis is also needed on maximizing the cost-effective use of technology to streamline internal
operations that make it easier for staff members to do their jobs and have more time available for their
core business functions like program development, program implementation and staff training. Currently,
the District relies on outdated practices to gather the necessary paperwork for newly hired employees
and to track hours worked for payroll purposes. These processes become increasingly cumbersome during
the peak hiring season for summer employment and takes valuable time away from preparing for summer
programs, opening the pools, and training new staff members. Staff has identified unreliable internet
service, lack of timely decision-making data and software systems as some of the barriers to increased
efficiency in performing their jobs.

Focusing on the District’s technology resources is one of the most effective tools to address these issues.
Also, using technology-driven social media to communicate internally and externally in a more effective

34

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



manner needs to be a high priority if the District wants to better reach the next generation of users and

relate to the younger population.

INTERNAL FACTORS
What are the things within the Park District that will affect its ability to move forward on this initiative?

Inadequate funding for investments in technology
Complacency of staff

Lack of knowledge and expertise to identify potential technology tools that could best support

business needs
Staff training on ways to maximize use of software applications
Time and lack of leadership to implement new technology and processes

EXTERNAL FACTORS
What are the things outside of the control of the Park District that will affect its ability to move forward

on this initiative?

Willingness of staff and residents to use technology

Spam blocking

Rapid changes in technology and customer expectations (fast and convenient)
Resistance to change

Threats of computer hacking

Legislative issues that require short-notice changes to business operations
Cost of technology improvements

Availability of software applications that support specialized businesses, provide useable
metrics, and easily integrate many lines of business into overall park district accounting and

reporting systems.
Vendor support
Demand for mobile technology and on-demand services

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

35



ACTION PLAN

" Objective: Provide a stable technology environment to reduce Fiscal | Assigned
downtime and improve transaction processing Year | to:

Work with vendors to improve credit card processing. Supt of
Finance

Examine the need for a dedicated IT professional or other Supt of

options to support operations and maximize use of Finance

technology.

Streamline new hire, timesheet, and payroll processes. Supt of
Finance

Identify ways to make it easier to gather and compile metrics Supt of
Finance

for decision-making.

Streamline program registration process.

Registration
Coordinator

and spread costs over a five-year period.

Explore options for maximizing current registration software Supt of
or replacing. Finance and
Recreation
identify opportunities to use technology to better reach Supt of
program participants to notify of program changes and Finance and
cancellations. Director
Make website more compatible for use on mobile phones. Marketing
Manager
Work with Rec Trac to clean up the brochure interface so class Marketing
enrollment is easier. Manager
Identify and implement ways to make website easier to Marketing
navigate and evaluate the need for an intranet/web page for Manager
employees.
Explore the need to expand use of mobile technology (i.e., Supt of
tablets, GIS to increase efficiency. Finance
Develop a technology report to help implement improvements Supt of
Finance

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

36



atisfa

Conduct customer service s

ction survey annually to

monitor the need for changes in processes and procedure.
e Attach a survey with every e-blast
e Develop meaningful, but limited, incentive program to
ensure residents participate in surveys.

Generalist

Conduct an annual all-staff training session on customer
service to standardize methods and techniques of service
provided to community.

Streamline brochure proess to imrove coordination and Marketing
communications between Recreation, Front desk, and Manager
Marketing departments.

Conduct annually targeted patron surveys using Constant Marketing
Contact. Manager
Replace front entrance marquee sign for better visibility of Marketing
PVCC via better technology. Manager
Explore opportunity to install quality produced, temporary Marketing
signs for special events at entrance to the Village. Manager

el N W —_j [SRes SN

Improve communication between staff members by:

e Conducting an annual survey.
e Holding quarterly meetings with staff to provide
updates and a forum for staff feedback.

Conduct regular informational meetings to coincide with
seasonal activities guide.

Consider an interdepartmental customer service ad-hoc
committee to help create a sense of urgency to move forward
technology and customer service initiatives.

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

37



Objective: Evaluate and implement communication tools Fiscal | Assigned
' | fyat ' Year | to:
Expand the use of social media channels. Marketing
Manager
Improve communication with community by: Marketing
Manager
e Targeting specific interests and demographics using
Instagram, Twitter, and Linkedin.
e Seek opportunities for cross promotions with other
community organizations
e Develop automated reminders with
incentives/discounts for repeat customers and early
sign up.
Monitor the cost effectiveness of printing the seasonal Marketing
activities guide. Manager
Develop a District-wide marketing plan. Marketing
Manager
Investigate communication tools to allow non-native speakers Marketing
to better communicate with the District. Manager

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

38



STRATEGIC INITIATIVE #6: FINANCIAL PLANNING THAT SUPPORTS HIGH QUALITY
SERVICES AND GROWTH

The Morton Grove Park District will continue to utilize sound financial planning to maintain its
fiscal health and ensure that scarce resources are allocated where they will provide the most
benefit to the community. We will work closely with governmental entities to achieve optimal
utilization of community resources and seek opportunities to grow revenue to better serve our
community. '

DEFINE THE ISSUE

Fiscal responsibility is a key factor in the Morton Grove Park District’s financial planning. The Morton
Grove Park District has historically taken a conservative and long-term approach to managing the District's

finances.

The District's main sources of revenue are property taxes and user fees. The reliance on tax revenue to
support Park District operations has been increasing in recent years due to less revenue generated from
user fees. The pandemic was a key reason for the loss of user fees as well as a lack of available
programming space and the desire for free or low-fee programs. Tax revenue is allocated to the various
funds based on the need and use of the service by a large percentage of residents as well as the ability of
the service to generate user fees. Under the tax cap, the District is limited in its ability to increase taxes
without a referendum, to the lower of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) or 6%.

User fees are viewed as a barrier to some families to signing up, at times with low-income families getting
priced out of our programs. However, we continue to see a high level of participation in our programs
and use of Park District services. The District works diligently to balance the need for affordable programs
with the need to generate revenue from program fees and offers a limited financial aid program.
Competition among other providers of services is a key factor in our ability to increase user fees. Surveys
of user fees are conducted on a regular basis to assure that we remain competitive in the marketplace. In
addition, the District strives to return value to our residents by enhancing property values and meeting
the recreational needs of the community by providing quality parks, facilities, and programs. It is
important to note that a compelling reason we can offer the wide-ranging facilities and programs is
because of our residents’ income levels and abilities to pay user fees. There are some funding challenges
in the development of the financial plan. The community has expressed a desire for more special events
which typically are no cost to the public. In addition, the District has acquired many assets like parks and
open space that provide many public benefits but have a limited ability to generate user fees. Until the
current debt is paid down, major investments in capital will require identifying a payment stream to

finance the projects or passing a referendum.

39

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



The District has several important components in place which contribute to our financial stability:

Investment Policy: The District's investment policy is conservative to protect the principal and only
allows for investments in Certificates of Deposit, Government Agencies and Money Market Accounts.

Long Term Financial Plans: The District also has a long-term financial plan that identifies funds
available for future capital projects after considering the effects of the debt already incurred. It also has a
long-term financial plan for funding the operational needs of the Park District. The Park District operating
expenses are primarily for the maintenance of parks, playgrounds, sports fields, and field houses which have
limited, if any, ability to generate user fees.

Fund Balances: The District has fund reserves with sufficient balances overall to cover short term
delays in tax receipts, temporary shortfalls in meeting budget expectations, or moderate unexpected
expenses.

Staff: The majority of our employees are part time or seasonal staff. The purpose of this plan is
to provide more flexibility in adjusting staffing levels, as needed, based on weather and participation
levels.

Debt: The District has invested heavily in rebuilding the two aquatic facilities and renovating its
other existing facilities. Through careful long-term planning, the District identified and segregated certain
funds to be used to repay the existing debt. We will continue to use this approach until the current debt
is paid down.

Categories of Park Services: In the last strategic plan, the board adopted a process that guides
how fees will be assessed as follows:

e BASIC PUBLIC SERVICES - The community pays through taxes, no or minimal user charges.
Includes services provided by the Park District which are available to all people. Used by a high
percentage of residents. Usually, all age levels benefit either directly or indirectly. Examples

include parks, playgrounds, sports fields, field houses.

e EXTRA PUBLIC SERVICES - Meets direct and part of indirect costs. Includes services provided by
the Park District which are an embellishment of a basic service. The individual participant
benefits most and all members of the community benefit somewhat. Examples include
recreation programs, fitness center, rental facilities.

As economic conditions and the District’s priorities change, existing financial plans must be continually
monitored and adjusted to reflect the District’s short-term and long-term needs. One of the challenges is
to develop plans that meet both the ongoing operational needs of the District in conjunction with the
desire for new investments in technology, capital items or increased services. Inflation and the cost of
labor are rising dramatically which means that a larger percentage of available funds will be needed just
to maintain existing facilities and services at current levels. The District will need to continue to effectively
set priorities for investments in technology, marketing, staff development, capital repairs and
improvements, acquisition of program space and enhanced services. In addition, the District will strive to
have each program area cover its direct costs using the approved Categories of Services as a guide, while
making sure basic services are affordable to the community at large. Potential ways of increasing revenue
include partnerships, grants, and sponsorships, cost control through operational efficiencies, and
repayment of debt.

40

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



What will financial stability for the Morton Grove Park District look like?

The District will be able to afford the upkeep and improvement of their assets to
acceptable standards that is expected by the community.
Financial mix of resources from both taxes and alternate revenues (50/50 split) to meet

L ]
operating expenditures as well as funding for growth.
e Margin of reserves to cover unforeseen expenditures including law changes and
unfunded mandates.
e Focus the use of financial resources and debt financing to maintain current assets before
embarking on something new unless new funding sources are identified.
INTERNAL FACTORS

What are the things within the Park District that will affect its ability to move forward on this initiative?

Realignment of Revenue: Split between fees for services and property tax revenue changed due
to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Financial Policies and Controls: Well-developed financial policies and controls are in place to
guide path of continued financial stability.

Part-time Employees: High percentage of staff are part-time employees which provides more
flexibility in adjusting staffing levels, as needed, based on weather and participation levels.
Aging Infrastructure: Fieldhouses, playgrounds and asphalt infrastructure are in need of
renovation.

Lack of ability to issue debt without referendum

Fees: Fees for some recreation programming may limit participation, especially by low-income
residents.

EXTERNAL FACTORS

What are the things outside of the control of the Park District that will affect its ability to move forward
on this initiative?

Inflation

Cost of labor and employee benefits

Unfunded Mandates: State of lllinois unfunded mandates

Tax Levy: Possible tax levy freeze

Competition: Growing competition from private sector service providers.

Weather: Poor weather in the summer has a negative effect on pools and the management of

outdoor events.

Property Tax: Property tax cap limits increases are based on CP! (Consumer Price Index) for all

goods and services while the Park District’s main expenditures are in the area of personnel and

contractual services.

41

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



ACTION PLAN

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

Objective: Annually review and update long term plan Fiscal | Assigned
_ Year | to:
Educate all departments on the budgeting process Supt of
Finance
Encourage each department to take ownership of their Executive
budget Director
Work with each department to properly track their Supt of
equipment even those items that are under the threshold Finance
Develop a plan to pay off Oriole Pool debt certificates early Supt of
Finance
Objective: Update Financial Policies and Procedures | Fiscal | Assigned
Formalize, develop Financial Policies in accordance with 2023 Supt of
those required for GFOA (Government Finance Officers Finance
Association) Best Practices.
e Contingency Planning
e Guide the Design of Programs and Services
Strengthen internal controls and increase internal 2023 Supt of
operational audits. Finance
Explore option of limiting sale period of pool passes Supt of
Finance
Re-evaluate the policy on resident/non-resident rates and 2023 Supt of
make recommendation to maximize program participation. Finance
Review policies, procedures, marketing, and funding of the Supt of
financial aid program. Finance
42



Strategize on how to maintain the current tax rate during this Supt of
time of property reassessments. Finance

Put the rollover bond proceeds to better use besides paying
down the Oriole Pool bond.

Promote the sponsorship program to the entire business Marketing
community. Manager
Pursue all possible grant opportunities. Supt of
Finance
Re-evaluate all programs and fee structures. Supt of
Finance

Recruit board members. Executive
Director
Conduct regular meetings that invite the public to Executive
participate. Director
Educate the community. Executive
Director
- —

['supt of

Prepare a Request for Proposal for banking services.
Finance
Prepare a Request for Proposal for auditing services. Supt of
Finance
Establish a policy to guide fee setting for contracted services. Supt of
Finance

43

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



evelop a form . dget presenta

tin t the boar to

ol e s Sl il

finances.

increase transparency and to educate the board on fiscal Finance

direction of District.

Develop/Distribute a Fiscal Year End financial review for the Supt of

community. Finance

Develop and distribute an annual report on programs’ Supt of
Finance

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

44



Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities & Threats Analysis

A SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats) Analysis was completed to summarize

feedback and information from:

e Board workshop
e Meetings with the Morton Grove Leadership Team

SWOT is a basic and straightforward tool for understanding the internal and external factors facing the
Morton Grove Park District in the delivery of recreation services. The tool is useful in showing the
opportunities and threats facing the Park District going forward. Please review the following chart to
better understand the current strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats facing the Morton Grove

Park District.

Insert updated photo

45

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT-DRAFT

SUMMARY “QUADRANT ANALYSIS” OF SWOT ITEMS

STRENGTHS

WEAKNESSES

Strong financial stewardship, control, and
planning

Well -maintained and used parks and
facilities

Variety of amenities and desirable outdoor
space and facilities; New pool

Great special events for the community
Board and staff relations
Community support

Village of Morton Grove’s location,
economic development is attracting more
residents

Knowledgeable staff; great work
environment

Improved customer service

Financial constraints and limited
resources (debt ceiling limit, property
tax caps on non-referendum tax
authority, minimum wage increases,
ability to operate facilities/programs at
break-even point)

Inadequate technology to meet

operational needs, provide timely
decision-making and create efficiency

Need for enhanced internal
communication to increase cohesion
and reduce silos

Programming and new facility space
limitations; landlocked

Competitive position with neighboring
park districts

Insufficient staffing levels and staff
turnover

Availability of program offerings that
reflect cultural diversity

Outreach to increase community
involvement

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

46



OPPORTUNITIES

THREATS

Sponsorships, grants, business partnerships
More Intergovernmental agreements

Develop relationships with legislators to
enhance grant opportunities

Grow program offerings (i.e., evening
programs, adult programs, lacrosse, scuba,
golf instruction, programs at pools, pickle
ball, cricket, and more programs reflecting
cultural diversity

Enhance community outreach and
involvement

Increase social media presence; enhance
District’s branding/image

Community desire for new facilities
(recreation center with indoor pool, walking
trails, additional lights on athletic fields)

Uncertain economy, inflation, and
potential pandemic restrictions

Competition from private business and
public agencies

Ability to attract and retain qualified
staff Changing employee expectations
and smaller candidate pool

Aging, outdated facilities

Duplication in community programs;
potential for “mission creep”

Complacency; Lack of big
thinking/creativity

Uncertainty and inconsistency because
of the reliance on schools for
programming space-school programs
take priority

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28

47



Attachments:
Attachment A- Morton Grove Park District Proposed Strategic Plan Projects for Consideration

Attachment B- National Recreation and Park Association-“Why Parks and Recreation are Essential Public

Services”

Insert updated photos

48

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



514

9]qe[IeAR S2WI0J3q dUO JT “IJUD
AunuIuiod e 103 AT} Paso[d

e asodindar 0 A1[1qIsesy ApniS e

Joel] Ioopu] e

xardwio)) suodg 100pu] e
UoIBd0][ U0

OJUI [00Y9S31J JO UOTBPI[OSUO)) e
syjuawAoxdw] yied pue

IMU9D) ANUNWUIO)) MITAJLITRI] e

BSREIONH |

33ureyd suonEN)Is 40 PIEMIO]
SOUIOD UOIJBULIOJUI MU JI PIJISIA 3q [[IM
-uoneIIPISUO)) danyn j 10§ s3dafoag

siuowaAoidw] yied [eI0USD) e
[euonjeN ©
yied unsny  ©

PIOYSURIN  ©
01O ©
-SIsNoY

PI2Y 10J $11J9u2q/3s09 pue suondo
UOTIBAOU2I/3sN 2I0[dXd pue AJIUIP] e

spoaloag

87-€707 UONEIIPISUO)) 10§ §393f0u g

SSunaa
Amunwwo))

pue ue[J IISeN
aarsuayarduwo))

(€U )
AaAIng V
Aunuuo)) 7zozZ e

wea ] diysiopea] e AH_ ongnd e

pleog e HeiS o
pieog e
:Aq uoneIIPISUO))

nduy yoaeasdy

swroay ynduy

Q7-$707 UONR.IIPISU0)) .10} SjudwdAoLdu]/s}ddload

tuR[J 1333803 IISI(] N1 J IA0.I5) UOLIOJA]

V Juswydeny



National Recreation and Park Association- Attachment B

“Why Parks and Recreation are Essential Public Services”

._f‘ ﬂ4 National Recreation
‘S 2nd Park Association
e

Why Parks and Recreation are Essential Public Services

Parks and recreation have three vwalues thal make them essentral services to
cammunities;

1. Economic value

3. Healtn and Environmentat berefits

3. Social importance

Iist as water, sewer, and public safety are corsideroe essent al pudiC setvices, parks
are vitally important to establishing ard maintaining the quality of lile w a
community, ensuring the healin of famelies and youth, arc centributing Lo the
sconomin and ervircnimental well seing of a commurity znd 3 region.

There ars ro communities that ande themselves on thelr quality of \ife, promots
themselves as a desirable location for busingsses to relocate, or Talntair that iney are
arvironmental stewards af their patural resources, without such commumies Ravnng a
~ubust, 3ctive system of parks and recreation arograms for nuklic use and enjoyment.

Econamic Value
s Parks improve 12 local tax base and Increase property values. [t 's praven
that private property values incraase 1ne value of privately owred and the
closer such land ‘s to parks, This increase In private progery ¥a.ue cLe to the
DroXimity 10 DArKE "NCrEAsEs Property 1ax =VerLes and improves [oca.
cconamics.

o A Toxas A& review of 25 studies investigating whether garks ane open space
contributed positively Lo the property vaiues of surrounding properties found
that 20 of the 25 studies found that property values were higher. “The real
sstate market consistontly demenstrates that mary poople are willing to pay a
larger amourst for property .ocated close to parks and coen space araas thar
for = horme that does nat offer this amenity, ”

»  Amoricar Farests, a national conservalion argarization that prometes tarestry,
estimates that traes in cities save 5400 Billian 0 storm water retention tacility
casts

+  (pality parks and recreation are cited as one of the top three reasons that
business cite in relacation decsions in a aumber of studies.

fe et s e Ay § e e



« Parks and recreation arograms produce a significant portion of cperating coss
trom revenue generated from fees and charges

s Parks and recreation pragrams generate revenue directly from fees and
charges, but more impartantly, provide significant indirect revenues to lacal
and regional econemies from sperts Tourmameants and special evenls such as
arts, music, a1d holiday festivals. Economic activity from hiospitality
expenditures, tourism, fuel, recreativnsl eguioment sales, and many other
private sector businesses s of true and sustaired vaiue to local and regional
economies,

Health and Environmental Benefits
s+ Parks are the piaces that people go to get healthy and stay fit.

Parks and recrsation programs and services contribute o the heatth as
children, youth, adults, and seniars.

According to studies by the Centers for Disease Conirol and Provention,
crealing, impreving anc promoting places to o€ physicatly active can imprave
indiv-cual and community heaith and result it a 75 percent ‘ncrease af
residents who exercise at ieast three tires par weak.

A study by Penn State University showed sign:iicant carrelations to raductions
in s2ress, lawered niood pressure, and perceived physical heaith to 1ne length
of stay in visits ta 2arks.

+ Parks and protected publy lands are prover to iMprave watel quadity, protect
groundwater, prevent flooding, improve tne quality of the air we brzathe,
provids vegetative buffsrs to development, aroduce habitat far wildlife, and
provide a place “or children and families te canfact with natdre and recrpate
outoonrs fogether,

Social Impartance
« Parks are 3 tangible reflection of the quality of e in a community. They
provide identity for cit'zens and are a major factor in tne perception of quality
of lif= in 3 given community, Parks and recreation services are often cited as
one of the mast important faciors in survays of how <jvable communites are.

« Parks provide gathering places for families and saciai groups, as well as or
individuals of al. ages and ecanoniic status, regardless of their ability to pay for
access.

«  An ongoing study by the Trust tor Public Land shows that over the past cecade.
voter approval -ates for bond measures to acguire parks and conserve oper
space exceeds 75%. Clearly, the majority of the public vigws parks as an
essertial priogfty or government spending

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



o Parks and recreation programs provide places for nealth and well-being that
are accessihia by persons ol all ages and abilities, especially to those With
disatzlities.

o In a 2007 survey of Fairfax County, VA, residents of 8 of 10 households rated »
guality park systemn either very Impartant or extremely impartant to their
quality of life.

« Research by the Project on Humar Devalpoment in Chicago Neighbarhoods
rdicates that community involvement in neighbaorhoad parks is associated with
lower levels of crime and vandalism

«  Access to parks and recreatian oppaitunities has been strongly linked te
reductigns in crime and to reduced juvente dellnquency.

e Parks have a vaiue to communities that transcend the amount of daliars

invested or the revenues gained from fees. Parks provide a sense of public
pride and cohesion ta every commuinity,

o Recreataon arad Prees dsyia sitan

10500 MEER IRFTO IR0 M 2N e ol RIS GF BV AT G0 F b1 L el e iy

Morton Grove Park District Strategic Plan 2023-28



Memorandum

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners

From: Marty O’Brien, Superintendent of Finance
Date: June 15, 2022

Regarding: Audit Review

Issue:

Per lllinois State Statues, the Morton Grove Park District must prepare a Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report. The report must be audited by an independent certified public accounting
firm within six months after the end of the fiscal year. Also, a notice of the report’s availability
must be published in the newspaper and posted on the park district website.

Discussion:

The Morton Grove Park District retained the services of Lauterbach & Amen, Certified Public
Accountants, to complete the audit for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021. Lauterbach
& Amen completed the audit and issued an unqualified opinion that the financials fairly
represent the financial conditions of the park district.

Park Board Action:
For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021.



NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY OF AUDIT REPORT OF THE MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT

Morton Grove Park District hereby provides public notice that an audit of its funds for the period January
1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 has been conducted by Lauterbach & Amen and that a report of such
audit dated December 31, 2021 will be filed with the Cook County Clerk, in accordance with 30 ILCS
150/0.01 et seq. The full report of the audit is available for public inspection at 6834 Dempster, Morton
Grove, IL 60053 during regular business hours of 9:00am to 5:00pm Monday through Friday and on the
park district website: www.mortongroveparks.com.




Memorandum

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners

From: Martin O’Brien, Superintendent of Finance

Date: June 15, 2022

Regarding: Statement of Receipts and Disbursements Report — Resolution #R-06-22

Issue:

Per lllinois State Statues, the Morton Grove Park District must prepare a report of Receipts and
Disbursements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2021. The report must be filed with the
Cook County Clerk within six months of the close of the fiscal year.

Discussion:

The report attached is a detail of the revenues received and the payments made for the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2021. Also included in the report is the beginning and ending cash
position of the district. Finally, included in the report is a list of individual vendor payments as
well as a list of district employees grouped by salary ranges.

Park Board Action:
For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve resolution #R-06-22 the Morton Grove Park
District Receipts and Disbursements Report for the year ending December 31, 2021.



MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

RECEIPTS: Taxes $5,122,434; Interest Income $27,328; Recreation Programs $621,933;
Swimming Pools $134,763; Community Center $76,328; Rental Income $82,047; Grants
$111,850; Other $77,429;

DISBURSEMENTS: Administrative & Clerical $1,445,798; Parks Maintenance $653,934;
Recreation Programs $353,672; Swimming Pools $279,368; Community Center $477,852;
Retirement Expense $361,440; Insurance $82,492; Handicapped Program $138,082; Audit
Fees $15,700; Police Protection $6,215; Museum $17,840; Debt Service (Principal &
Interest) $983,575; Capital Projects $11,176,183.

FUND BALANCE: January 1, 2021 (Beginning of Year) $18,255,646.00
Add: Receipts 6.254.112.00
Add: Other Financing Sources 992,233.00
Less: Disbursements (15.992.151.00)
December 31, 2021 (End of Year) $9.509.840.00
DISBURSEMENTS

CASH DISBURSEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED 12/31/2021

A-1 Roofing Company,176,940.00, Action Fence Contractors Inc.,161,748.00, Ais
International,9,027.50, Alarm Detection Systems, Inc.,2,845.63, Althoff Industries
Inc,526,405.00, Amalgamated Bank Of Chicago,2,136,207.09, Ascher Brothers
Inc.,33,954.00, Breezy Hill Landscaping,75,663.00, BS&A Software,3,661.00, C.A.D.
Contract Glazing, Inc,132,786.00, Canon Financial Services, Inc.,5,307.66, Case Lots,
Inc,9,425.65, Chapman And Cutler Llp,7,500.00, Chicago Tribune Media Group,2,514.19,
Cmfp Dept Mg-06a,4,200.00, Colley Elevator Co.,3,011.00, Comcast Cable,7,651.23,
Comed,139,009.13, Conserv Fs,13,132.94, Creekside Printing,29,523.15, Cre's
Environmental Control,31,715.50, Cummins Npower,3,006.87, D&R Trucking
Company,11,875.00, DBM Services Inc,872,363.00, Demarr Sealcoating Inc.,8,880.00,
Direct Fitness Solutions, Llc,24,858.96, Douglas Floor Covering, Inc.,24,133.00, Elliot
Construction Corp,789,300.00, E-Town Tennis,8,166.34, Gli Services, Inc.,51,753.56,
Goodmark Nurseries,7,424.00, Graf Tree Care, Inc.,2,662.50, Grainger,5,804.53, Graphic
Arts Service,9,685.00, Green Turf Inc.,11,600.00, Groot, Inc.,8,660.71, Hacienda
Landscaping Inc.,225,413.10, Halogen Supply Company, Inc.,8,876.30, Hill Fire Protection,
Llc,48,240.00, Holli Hahn - Ultimate School Of Gui,4,661.30, Hot Shots Sports,43,889.31,
Illinois Assoc. Park Districts,6,926.90, Illinois Shotokan Karate Club,16,444.61, J.S.
Riemer, Incorporated,598,521.00, Jeff Ellis & Associates, Inc.,6,480.00, Jensen's Plumbing
& Heating,529,408.00, John Deere,30,243.41, Johnson Health Tech Na Inc. ,6,394.00,
Landscape Structures Inc.,54,409.00, Language In Action, Inc.,2,910.00, Lauterbach &
Amen, Llp,15,700.00, LRS Holdings, Llc,5,032.84, Maine-Niles Assn Of Special



Recreation,138,082.01, Menards,10,445.73, Menconi Terrazzo, Llc,13,005.00, Midwest
Wrecking Co,12,499.00, Morton Grove Days Commission,2,750.00, NAC Supply,
Inc.,5,494.00, Napa,5,992.67, National Heat & Power Corp,322,433.00, Nicor
Gas,13,036.60, North Shore Officials Association,7,354.50, Nutoys Leisure
Products,4,036.50, Park District Risk Management,71,675.09, Peerless Network,38,733.67,
Planning Resources Inc.,46,096.66, Postmaster,12,913.56, Prestige Distributions,
Inc,82,725.00, Promo Gear Plus,Llc,4,161.98, Rasco Mason Contractors,356,338.00, Record
A Hit, Inc.,3,865.00, Reinders, Inc.,4,456.58, Robbins Schwartz,65,937.00, Russo Power
Equipment,2,709.80, Schaefges Brothers Inc,2,651,173.00, Soil And Material Consultants,
Inc.,5,260.00, Sound Planning Associates, Inc.,35,991.07, State Industrial Products,4,085.75,
Symmetry Energy Solutions, Llc,26,873.73, Sysco Food Services,2,727.54, The Lifeguard
Store,3,172.50, The W-T Group, Ll¢,36,723.94, TIAA Commercial Finance, Inc.,5,357.44,
U.S. Arbor Products, Inc.,8,060.40, Upland Design,28,639.63, V And J Landscaping And
Services ,7,213.22, Verizon Wireless,11,535.72, Vermont Systems, Inc.,6,550.13, Village Of
Morton Grove,41,178.74, W.B. Olsen,668,903.00, Wellbeats,2,988.00, Wendy
Decarlo,6,032.60, Western Architectural Iron Co,136,3 89.00, Williams Associates
Architects, Ltd,173,398.91,

TOTAL: 14,048,132.00
PAYROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED 12/31/2021

Under $25,000:

Flynn Goodwin, Kaitlin C; Sangalang, Melvin ; Lehman, Leslye ; Enos, Barbara ; Llika,
Elvir ; Senior, Debra L; Carter, Lamont ; Senior, Michelle ; Odisho, Natasha ; Boudakh,
Danielle ; Schaefges, Amanda ; Kopp, Fatemeh ; Cayemitte, Alain ; Danyal, Jacob ; Bala,
Suman ; Tom, Cheryl R; Gatto, Dana L; Bora, Andrea ; Lakhani, Sahar ; Capellan, Jayda ;
Lucante, Sandro ; Fabbri, William ; Boedefeld, Joyful ; Cote, Brandi ; Ledesma, Nathan ;
Gail, Carol ; Alaba, Dwigtht Dee R; O'neill, Emily ; Jaunich, Louise ; Callaghan, Richard R;
Brant, Michael ; Jimenez, Bendy ; Foss, Ruth E; Dunker, Samuel ; Holly, Matthew R; Fucik,
Ryan ; Anderson, Christopher R; Witko, Sheridan ; Odisho, Daniella ; Rios, Maya ; Meyer,
Frances ; Dasilva, Ethan ; Varghese, Jasmine ; Mccloskey, Timothy ; Tabet, Patrizia D;
Rayahin, Nuha J; Dass, Shobha ; Reyes, Jaylis ; Marquez, Montserratt ; Roszkowski,
Sebastian ; Kadlec, Hannah ; Alic, Nerina ; Gerstein, Nancy L; Boudakh, Georgina ;
Douglas, Mackenna ; Paganucci, Michael J.; Silvano, Carlos ; Mesquita, Suraj ; Gilbert, Elle
- Nickl, John ; Baranyk, Nina ; Choi, Hana ; Novak, Isabella ; Soria, Nayelli ; Audisho,
Helany ; Toth, Theresa M; Kloda, Michelle ; Cajuste, Nina ; Patel, Darshna ; Skoufos,
Angela ; Park, Bruce ; Sorisho, John ; Schwimmer, Hannah ; Godoy, Nicole ; Klug, Alyssa ;
Roque, Kristine G; Hinderer, Mary ; Ho, Derrick ; Johnson, Katelyn ; Johnson, Sarah H;
Montoya, Estrella ; Mosele, Lauren ; Bialkowski, William ; Dankha, Paulette ; Du, Yu ;
Mosele, Grace ; Khan, Safeena ; Gillespie, Colin ; Roy, Charles ; Lobianco, Gabriella ;
Manning, Molly ; Bidne, Ronda ; Sol, Hanna ; Foley, Megan ; Rumpsa, Margaret ; Gilbert,
Quinn ; Paramby, Kiren ; Schutz, Donna L; Thorns, Carolyn D; Joseph, Malory ; Hughes,
Michael ; Nichols, Joel ; Lahey, Kathryn ; Rosca, George ; Pietrzak, Daniel ; Pagan, Natalia ;
Babbo, Maximo ; Malasig, Jakob ; Price, Susan ; Likoudis, Frank ; Gorak, Daniella G;



Santana, Dasany A; Curtis, Theresa ; Kornstein, Sarah M; Miceli, Matthew ; Holly,
Christopher ; Bencivenga, Grace ; Diete, Justin T; Son, Chong Hui ; Cuesta, Marilyn M;
Ryan, John E; Kruchten, Paul ; Kosaric, Denis ; Chiquini, Adrian ; Mcgarry, Lillian ;
Moorehouse, Tyler ; Liston, Daniel ; Yactor, Mary E; Maitino, Robert ; Karp, Dylan ; Ayala,
Brenda ; Kristian, Lin ; Mazur, Joseph ; Yoon, Jungmee ; Skoufos, Maria A; Carreon, Boon ;
Theccanat, Mathew ; Galgano, Renate C; Shaikh, Ubaid ; Suarez, Alexis R; Roy, Lena ;
Cline, Kevin ; Mucci, Mary H; Doughty, Ashcroft, Ticia ; Stibbe, Trevor N; Malcman,
Kimberly E; Menegon, Janet L; Losacco, Bradley ; Smentek, Susan ; Walas, Kim

$25,000 to $49,999.99

Holbrook, Robert ; Lindahl, Sarah ; Torres, David ; Mickie, Keith ; Bregman, Daniel ;
Aguilar, Shawn ; Ishii, Lauren ; Bahr, Adam ; Ware, Dale ; Baumgartner, Claire ; Moore,
Kelly

$50.000 to $74.999.99

Gonzalez, Luisa ; Rauhut, Gregory S; Hesseln, Norbert C; Herrmann, Kathy A; Brunning,
Timothy ; Manno, Mark,

$75,000 to $99,999.99

Stroesser, John P; Braubach, Susan ; Gorczyca, Keith ; Kee, Laura;

$100,000 to $124,999.99

O'Brien, Martin;

$125.000 and Over

Wait, Jeffrey D;
Total payroll: $1,944,019.00

GRAND TOTAL: 15,992,151.00




STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF COOK
TREASURER'’S CERTIFICATE

I, Mazhar Khan, do hereby certify that I am the regularly appointed, qualified and acting
treasurer of the Morton Grove Park District.

I do further certify that the above is a true and accurate Report of the Statement of Receipts
and Disbursements of the Morton Grove Park District for the eight months ended December
31, 2020. This report was made in full compliance with Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 30

ILCS 15/1.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand this 15th day of June 2022.

Mazhar Khan, Treasurer, Morton Grove Park District

Signature



Memorandum

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners

From: Martin O’Brien, Superintendent of Finance

Date: June 15, 2022

Subject: Post-Issuance Tax Compliance Report— Resolution #R-07-22
Issue:

The current Bond Ordinances requires the Compliance Officer report to the Board of Park
Commissioners whether the bond expenditures for the past year comply with the bond
ordinance.

Discussion:

A general obligation bond is a common type of municipal bond that is secured by a state or
local government's pledge to use legally available resources, including tax revenues, to repay
bond holders.

As part of any general obligation bond issue, we must agree to spend the bond proceeds in
accordance with IRS regulations. At the end of each year, it is the responsibility of the
Compliance Officer to ensure:

1. That all the records related to the bonds are kept.
2. That the District hasn’t used the bond proceeds for purposes that would cause the

bonds to be taxable.
3. That the property for which the bond proceeds were used has not been leased for

private business use.
4. That the District hasn’t been contacted by the IRS to respond to a compliance check.

The Compliance Officer reviewed the expenditures and determined that they comply with the
bond ordinance.

Park Board Action:
For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve the attached Resolution #R-07-22 stating that
the District is compliant with the applicable tax law requirements.



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS
CouNnTY OF COOK )
POST-ISSUANCE TAX COMPLIANCE REPORT

Resolution #R-07-22

To:  Board of Park Commissioners of the Morton Grove Park District, Cook County, Illinois,
Illinois

Pursuant to my responsibilities as the Compliance Officer as set forth in a Bond Record
Keeping Policy (the “Policy”’) adopted by the Board of Park Commissioners (the “Board”) of the
Morton Grove Park District, Cook County, Illinois (the “District ), on the 15th day of July, 2015,
I have prepared a report reviewing the District’s contracts and records to determine whether the
Tax Advantaged Obligations (as defined in the Policy), comply with the applicable federal tax
requirements. In accordance with the proceedings and agreements under which the Tax
Advantaged Obligations were issued, the District has covenanted generally to take all action
necessary to comply with the applicable federal tax rules and regulations relating to the Tax
Advantaged Obligations, including covenants necessary to preserve the excludability of interest
on the Tax Advantaged Obligations from gross income for federal income taxation purposes. The
following sets forth a summary demonstrating the District’s compliance with such covenants and
expectations.

(a) Records. 1 have in my possession all of the records required under the
Policy.

(b)  Arbitrage Rebate Liability. 1 have reviewed the agreements of the District
with respect to each issue of the Tax Advantaged Obligations. At this time, the District
does not have any rebate liability to the U.S. Treasury.

(¢) Contract Review. 1 have reviewed copies of all contracts and agreements
of the District, including any leases, with respect to the use of any property owned by the
District and acquired, constructed or otherwise financed or refinanced with the proceeds of
the Tax Advantaged Obligations and other records. At this time, each issue of the Tax
Advantaged Obligations complies with the federal tax requirements applicable to such
issue, including restrictions on private business use, private payments and private loans.

(d)  IRS Examinations or Inquiries. The Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”)
has not commenced an examination of any issue of the Tax Advantaged Obligations. The
IRS has not requested a response to a compliance check, questionnaire or other inquiry.

Based upon the foregoing, I believe that the District is currently in compliance with the
applicable tax law requirements and no further action is necessary at this time. This report will be
entered into the records of the District and made available to all members of the Board at the next
regular meeting thereof.

Respectfully submitted this 15th day of June, 2022.

By

Compliance Officer



Morton Grove Park District

UPDATE & INFORMATION

June 15, 2022

RECREATION AND PROGRAMMING REPORT — SUE BRAUBACH

General/Special Events

o Staff has been extremely busy with summer programs and events. Along with that they have
been planning out and inputting fall program information.

e Harrer Pool opened to the public on Saturday, June 4 and Oriole is scheduled to open on June
11. As of this date we have sold passes to 522 households which is a total of 1,565

memberships.

e Next Community Blood Drive will be held on Saturday, June 18 from 10:00 am-2:00 pm at

Prairie View Community Center.
e Our Summer Concert series begins on Tuesday, June 14 with the Bill Brickey Band.

e Upcoming events:

Event Date Time Place

Concert in the Park June 14t 7:00 pm Harrer Park
Yappy Hour June 17t 4:30pm Oketo Park
Movie in the Park June 17t 8:30 pm Harrer Park
Blood Drive June 18 10:00a-2:00 pm PVCC

Concert in the Park June 21% 7:00 pm Harrer Park

Pool Member June 26 Pools open 1 hour Oriole and Harrer
Appreciation Day early Pools

Concert in the Park June 28t 7:00 pm Harrer Park

Athletics

e Multiple athletic facility, field, and court rentals have been booked. Rental types include
gymnasium rentals for basketball and volleyball, court rentals for sand volleyball, and ball field
rentals for baseball/softball use.

e The second half of Hot Shots summer programming is set to begin the week of June 13 —19.
Enrollment in classes are strong totaling 158 registrants amongst all classes.

Fitness

e All aqua group exercise classes have enough participants to run this summer. Classes begin the

week of June 13.

e InJune there will be a new group exercise class called High Fitness. This is a body weight only
choreographed aerobics workout offered twice a week.

» A new employee will begin working at the fitness on June 7.

e The fitness center will be getting a new incline bench and Olympic barbells later this summer.

1|Page



Camp/Preschool/Kinder Odyssey

e Summer Camp began with Camp Smore the week of June 6-10.
e Regular season camp begins June 13.
e Registration for the 2022/2023 pre-school year is on-going. Current registration is:

o Acorns (2 year-olds) 10
o Sprouts (3 year-olds) 15
o Great Oaks (4 year-olds) 28

o Kinder Odyssey registration began on May 2. So far, we have 20 registered.

e Camp registration is strong. Junior Camp and Mor Gro are both full. We have higher maximums
this year then we had in 2021.

e If we add the Happy Campers registration, we have a total of 913 camp registrations.

2021 2022 (thru June 7)
CAMP Session | Session | Session | Session | Session | Session | Session | Session
1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
Kidventure 30 32 27 19 32 30 30 24
Junior 34 35 33 32 62 64 64 62
Mor Gro 35 35 36 34 72 69 64 68
Teen Times 25 24 23 21 25 24 26 21
478 737

Aquatics/BASE

All Lifeguards and Cashiers are hired, trained, and completed background checks.

Successful opening weekend at Harrer Pool. Thank you to all who attended VIP night and Ribbon
Cutting Ceremony.

Aquatics and Maintenance staff have been working hard in preparation for the opening of Oriole
Pool on June 11"

All Aquatics Programs start the week of June 13t

Had a successful before and after school program. Registration is open for 2022-2023 school year.

Dance/Cultural Arts

Summer Dance Open House was held on Tuesday, June 7t with 19 registered participants.
A dance assistant was hired for summer, welcome to Miss Amanda.

' Dance camps started on June 6™ with Magical Mermaids Camp. Little Movers: Butterflies & Bugs

Dance Camp will run June 13-17 and Dance Explorers: Musical Theatre Encanto & Coco will run June
27-July 1.

Guitar & Ukulele Lessons will begin on June 20™.

Summer Dance Session | workshops, and classes begin on June 13,

Registration is open for the next session of Dog and Puppy Training classes, July 7-August 11.

2|Page



MARKETING DEPARTMENT REPORT — KATHY HERRMANN

Production for the fall brochure has begun. Fall Activity Guide will be available online on August 13.
MGPD resident registration to begin August 15, and nonresident registration to begin August 22.
PVCC + Fieldhouse Phase five signage is scheduled to be up by June 9. Harrer Pool and Oriole pool
signage has been installed and complete.

Website project is underway and should go live early September.

Signage hung on June 9 at Oketo Park with Oketo Park Neighborhood Meeting 2 info.

In addition, info included on social media (Facebook and Instagram), and in eblasts.

Website, Outdoor Signboard, and Reach digital internal sign, updated on a regular basis.

Three monthly Eblasts and weekly SM scheduled throughout the month of June.

Last newsletter of the season sent to school districts, 63, 67, 69, with MGPD updates, and posted on
their website. Newsletter sent to District 70 to be included in Principal enews. Fall will start up late

August.

FINANCE DEPARTMENT REPORT - MARTY O’BRIEN

We worked with office of the Cook County Clerk to ensure the 2022 Economic Interest Statements
were completed all required district staff and that they were properly filed.

Our auditors, Lauterbach and Amen, have completed the 2021 audit which will be presented at the
June 15 board meeting for the approval of the board.

At the June board meeting, we will present a statement of the Receipts and Disbursements for the
period ending December 31, 2021. This statement needs to be approved by the board as a

resolution and signed by the board treasurer.
| attended the Annual GFOA Conference in Austin between June 4% and June 8th. We learned about

new laws and regulations that will affect our financial reporting.

HUMAN RESOURCES & RISk MANAGEMENT — MICHELLE KHZAKIA

« Guest Services is extremely busy with pool memberships and had extended hours to
accommodate residents who want to register for pool memberships the week Harr Pool
opened.

« HR has been processing new hire paperwork all week.

o Park Patrol started their season.

o There were ten rentals in the month of June.

o There were zero workers' compensation claims.

PARKS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT — KEITH GORCZYCA

e Court Projects: Fencing installation was complete at Harrer. Tennis net post installation is

underway. Austin, Shermer and Prairie View have all been flood tested, leveled, and
received 1st & 2nd coats of re-surfacer. Color coatings applications still on hold due to

3|Page



weather conditions. As soon as they become favorable, no rain or temperatures above 50
degrees, color coating will take place.

The Arnum Park grand opening ceremony took place on May 21% and was well attended by
the neighbors.

The Harrer Pool grand opening took place on June 4*. Staff was busy with final
preparations in order to open. These included training on all the new equipment and
operations, filling the pools, cleaning all the facilities, setting up the diving boards and lane
flags, Village of Morton Grove and IDPH inspections, sign and plaque installations, ADA stair
installation, and final walk throughs to address punchiest items with Williams Associates,
WT Engineering and Upland Design

Completed a design review of Oketo Park with Upland Design.

Worked with a group of neighbors by Oketo Park installing additional plantings around the
west sign bed.

Completed work on the Veterans Memorial. This included repainting the signs, installing
new sign posts, flag replacement, polishing the bronze plaques, and power washing the
wall, bench and walk way.

AT&T subcontractor bored through the garage water and sanitary lines preparing for the
new phone cable installation.

The parks department hired two seasonal staff for the summer.

Porta potty service was set up at seven parks for the season. These include Austin,
Mansfield, National, Oketo, Oriole, Palma Lane and Shermer parks.

Staff completed all the opening procedures in order for Oriole Pool to open on June Iy
These included power washing both pools, installing all the plumbing fixtures, installing
shade canopies, and cleaning the facility.

Removed all the garlic mustard from the prairie.

Pre-school sites were all taken down and equipment stored in anticipation of the day camp
season starting.

Routine maintenance items this month included: turf mowing, watering plant material,
equipment repairs, facility cleaning, increased trash pickup, park and playground
inspections and repairs, facility inspections, vehicle inspections, fire extinguisher
inspections, and numerous work order requests.

4|Page



